
Mayor 
John Dowless 

Richard A lan Horn 
Council President 

Ben Pierce 
Council President 

Pro Tern 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
Regular Meeting 

City Hall- Council Chamber 
405 Bagshaw Way , Edgewood, Florida 

Tuesday, December 17, 2019 
6:30p.m. 

Lee Chotas 
Council Member 

Susan Fortini 
Council Member 

Chris Rader 
Council Member 

WELCOME! We are very glad you have joined us for today's Council meeting. If you are not on the agenda, 
please complete an appearance form and hand it to the City Clerk. When you are recognized, state your 
name and address. The Council is pleased to hear relevant comments; however, a five-minute limit has been 
set by Council. Large groups are asked to name a spokesperson. Robert's Rules of Order guide the conduct 
of the meeting. PLEASE SILENCE ALL CELLULAR PHONES AND PAGERS DURING THE MEETING. "THANK 
YOU" for participating in your City Government. 

I A. CALL TO ORDER 

I B. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

I c. ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

I D. PRESENTATION 

None. 

I E. CONSENT AGENDA 

l. Review and Consideration of City Council Meeting Minutes 

(Pgs. 1-13) November 19, 2019 

2. (Pgs. 4-18) McDirmit ::::: Davis' Letter of Engagement 

(Items 0 11 the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature, Therefore, do not warrant detailed 
discussion or individual action by the Council. A ny member of the Council may remove any item from 
the con sent agenda simply by verbal request prior to consideration of the consent agenda. The remored 
item(s) are mo\·ed to the end of New Business for discussion and consideration.) 



Regular Council Meeting November 19,2019 Page 2 

I F. ORDINANCES 

I. (Pgs. 19-29) 2019-11 -AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD. 
FLORIDA. RELATING TO ILLICIT STORMWATER CONNECTIONS AND 
DISCHARGES; AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES; CREATING 
CHAPTER 30. '·HEALTH AND SANITATION," ARTICLE V. '·ILLICIT 
DISCHARGE PREVENTION"": PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
CODIFICATION: SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

2. (Pgs. 30-32) 2019-12 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 134-1, ·'DEFINITIONS," OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES TO CREATE A DEFINITION FOR THE TERM BEAUTY 
SALON; PROVIDING THAT PERMANENT MAKEUP APPLICATION AND 
LASER HAIR REMOVAL ARE SERVICES THAT MAY BE PROVIDED AT A 
BEAUTY SALON; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY: PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

G. PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDINANCES - SECOND READINGS & RELATED I 

ACTION) 

1. (Pgs. 33-43) 2019-10 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD. 
FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 14-11 OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES REGARDING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR BOAT DOCK 
CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

I H. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

I. (Pg. 44-45 ) Request For Proposal Revie\\ Committee- Recommendation for Secondary 
Debris Management Services Provider 

I I. NEW BUSINESS 

None. 

I J. GENERAL INFORMATION (No action required) 

None 

I K. CITIZEN COMMENTS 



Regular Council Meeting November 19, 2019 Page 3 

I L. BOARDS & COMMITTEES 

*A larger size copy of plans is available to view in City Hall and will be amilable in the Council 
Meeting* 

• (Pgs. 46-62) 5655 S. Orange A\'enuc- Cornerstone Hospice/PACE Application 
for Special Exception 

• (Pgs. 63-79) 4721 S. Orange Avenue (Gatlin Hall Bre\\ery)- Commercial 
Revie\v 

I M. STAFF REPORTS 

City Attorney Smith: 

Police Chief Freeburg: 

• (Pg. 80) Chiefs Repm1 

Cit)' Clerk Meeks: 

I N. l\IA YOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

• Mayor Dowless 

• Council President Horn 

• Council Member Chotas 

• Council Member Fortini 

• Council Member Pierce 

• Council Member Rader 

I 0. ADJOURNMENT 

UPCOJ\IINT EVENTS: 

Friday, February 21, 2020 ................................ Mardi Gras in Bagshaw Park (Details Coming Soon) 

UPCOMING MEETINGS: 

Monday, January 13, 2020 ........................................... Planning & Zoning Meeting (6:30p.m.) 
Tuesday, January 21, 2020 ........................................... Regular City Council Meeting (6:30p.m.) 

You are welcome to attend and express your opinion. Please be advised that Section 286.0105, Florida Statutes state that 
if you decide to appeal a decision made with respect to any matter, you \'I' ill need a record of the proceedings and may 
need to ensure that a verbatim rerord is made. In accordance '''ith the American Disabilities Act (ADA), if any person 
\'t'ith a disability as defined by the ADA needs special accommodation to participate in this proceeding, he or she should 
telephone the City Clerk at (407) 851-2920. 



I CALL TO ORDER 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, November 19, 2019 

6:30p.m. 

Council President Horn called the Edgewood City Council meeting to Order at 6:30 p.m. He 
asked for a moment of silence foll owed by leading everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

I ROLL CALL & DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 

C ity C lerk Meeks announced a quorum, with four Council Members present. She announced that 
Counc il Member Chotas gave advance notice of hi s absence and requested a motion to excuse 
hi s absence. 

Council Member Rader made the Motion to excuse Council Member Chotas ' absence; Second 
by Counc.:il Member Pierce. Approved (410) 

Attendees 

John Dowless, Mayor 
Richard H orn, Council President 
Ben Pierce, Council President Pro-Tem 
S usan Fortini , Council Member 
Chris R ader, Council 

Absent 

Lee Chotas, Council Member 

Bea L. Meeks, C ity Clerk 
John Freeburg, Police Chief 
C ity Attorney Drew Smith 
Shannon Patterson, PO Chief of Staff 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes NoYember 19, 2019 Page 2 

PRESEJ\T A TIOi'l' 

Mayor Dmlless presented Dmid Smith. 0\\ner of A-1 Septic. \\ith a Certificate of Appreciation 
for the donation of sand he gave to the City in preparation of Hurricane Dorian. 

Beth Watson. Orange County Property Appraiser (OCPA) Manager of Communications and 
External Affairs addressed the recent concerns regarding the omission of non-ad Yalm·em 
assessments on some residents" tax bill. In attendance with Ms. Watson \\'as Roger Ross. 
Director. Tax Roll. and Customer Service & Exemptions. with Orange County Property 
Appraiser. Ms. Watson read a statement that essentially stated it was the City"s responsibility to 
send the addition of a non-ad valorem assessment information to OCP A (Statement provided for 
the record). Ms. \Vatson"s statement was followed with questions and comments. Of concern to 
Council was .. how did other non ad-valorem assessments make the tax roll. when staff was not 
providing anything to OCP A""? Council questioned the process and the fact that OCPA is 
pro\ided \\ith a copy of the Certificate of Occupancy from the Orange County Building 
Department. There was no resolve of Council and Staffs questions. 

COJ\SENT AGEI'IDA 

I. Review and Consideration of City Council Meeting Minutes 

• September 17.2019 Regular City Council Meeting 
• October 15.2019 Regular City Council Meeting 

City Clerk Meeks noted correction(s) from Mayor Dowless: there were no other corrections. 

Council Member Fortiui made the i~fotion to approve the minutes of September 17, 2019, with 
correction and the October 15, 2019 minutes as presented; Second by Council Member Rader. 
Approved (410) 

ORDINANCES 

2019-10 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD. FLORIDA 
AMENDING CHAPTER 14-11 OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF 
ORDINANCES REGARDING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR BOAT 
DOCK CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Council President Horn referred to City Attorney Smith for his comments. Council Member 
Fortini asked what changed in this draft Ordinance tt·om the previous Ordinance. City Attorney 
Smith said the previous Ordinance only dealt \\ith canals, but that has changed with the revised 
Ordinance. as more information has been added. The revised ordinance gives staff the ability to 
administratively approve more than they do now. City Attorney Smith confirmed the Ordinance 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes November 19,2019 Page 3 

does not affect the vanance being addressed on the agenda m this meeting (referencing 
Windsong Yariance). 

City Attorney Smith provided the follmYing revisions: 

Line 44- Definition of access walkway 

City Attorney Smith said a request was made to add the definition of a canal. He said he could 
not lind a jurisdiction that defines canal. He said this is probably because a naJTmv lake is no 
different than a canal and this could be why there is no detinition of a canal. City Attorney 
Smith said the City wants to preserve navigability. 

Line 50- Expand definition of docks to include tloating docks. 

City Attorney Smith said he did not make a change because the definition covered non-tloating 
docks so change was not necessary. 

Line 70-

The definition of terminal platfonn vyas added. City Attomey Smith explained that this 
detinition vYas added so you can distinguish between a walkway and a terminal platform. 

Line 96-

City Attorney Smith said in preparing for the meeting tonight he found a change that needed to 
be made. He said that clarification of what is the overall calculation, and what is counting 
tmYards overall square footage was provided. He said the goal was to make the application 
materials easier for the reviewer. Council Member Rader questioned the roof overhang and if a 
dimension should be added. It was agreed to add "any roof structure''. 

City Attorney Smith said he did some cleanup and the list is broken down ditTerently than 
before, and is more in line with Orange County so that it is easier for the reviewer. City Attomey 
Smith noted that subsection 'T' should say boundary survey instead of site plan, which 
accurately depicts current conditions. 

Line 109-

City Attorney Smith noted that other adjacent docks vyere addressed in the previous Ordinance 
but easier to see and understand now. 

Line 146 

City Attorney Smiths said the notarized statement required from the adjacent property ovmer 
saying they have no objections if you are encroaching into their setback. vyas in two places in the 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes NoYember 19,2019 Page 4 

code. He said one was a ·'may·· and one was a ··shall"": it \\"US interpreted as a ··shall"". He said at 
line 1046. a 5-foot encroachment into the 15-foot setback is allowed. if you have a letter of no 
objection. City Attorney Smith said if the applicant has a letter of "no objection"". it does not 
haw to be appro\·ed by Council: it can be approved by stall. City Attorney Smith said if an 
applicant is belo\v the minimum standards. they would have to get a variance approved. 

City Attorney Smith said the next comment \\as dealing with canals. He said one of the 
suggestions was to have a minimum navigability corridor of twenty-five percent, which is \\hat 
the City provides for canals. City Attorney Smith said he moved away from canals and the 
t\venty-five percent and included a straight 25-foot obstruction to obstruction requirement. He 
said there \\ill ahmys be a 25-foot navigational lane. Council 1\lcmber Rader asked if there is a 
universally accepted definition of na\·igability. City Attorney Smith said there is not a hard and 
fast definition. Engineer Lane said that during his plan revie\v. he looks at the depth of \Vater at 
the end of the boat dock. City Attorney Smith asked would it be beneficial to include \Vith the 
application that the applicant provide a navigable lane. Engineer Lane said he thinks the 
applicant vmuld have to get a survey company to do this. 

City Attorney Smith said that maximum length, which triggers a lot of re\·iews has gone away. 
He explained further and said he thinks this will mitigate the concerns Council Member Rader 
had. Council Member Rader asked Engineer Lane to review this part further and provide his 
comments. 

Line 194-

City Attorney Smith said the revised Ordinance remows the provision of a variance due to the 
calculation of the roof overhang. 

Line 321- Maintenance 

The revised Ordinance provides a provision that allovvs property owners to do maintenance on 
their boat docks. as long as they do not expand the footprint. Council President Horn said he 
vvould like a provision added that would require notification to the City. Discussion ensued 
regarding routine maintenance; City Attorney Smith he IYill look at defining routine 
maintenance. It was agreed to add ·• ... do not expand or enclose the footprint''. 

Line 238-

Narrows the provision of when an objection would trigger administrati\·e decision. 

City Attorney Smith said there was other cleanup in the reYised Ordinance but it was not 
substantive. He confirmed that the Planning & Zoning Board vYill review and make 
recommendation before the final council meeting. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes November 19, 2019 Page 5i 

City Attorney Smith provided the notes he took during discussion. It vvas agreed to strike notice 
to staff regarding routine maintenance. 

It was the consensus of Council to have the first reading of Ordinance 2019-10. City Attorney 
Smith gaw the reading of Ordinance 2019-10 in title only. 

There were no public comments. 

Council JYJember Rader made the 1Hotion to approve the first reading of Ordinance 2019-10, 
with the changes; Second by Council kfember Fortini. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vole (410): 
Council President Horn Yes 
Council Jl.-fember Fortini 
Councilllfember Pierce 
Council Jl.-fember Rader 
Council Member C/wtas 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Absent 

Mayor Dowless said that before Council moves to the next agenda item. he vv·anted to apologize 
to Roger Ross and Beth Watson for some comments he made earlier. His apology was accepted. 

I PUBLIC HEARINGS (ORDINANCES- SECOND READINGS & RELATED ACTION) 

1. ORDINANCE 2019-08 - AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, 
FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 134 - --zoNING" BY CLARIFYING 
LOCATION STANDARDS FOR ACCESSORY STRUCTURES. INCLUDING 
SCREEN ENCLOSURES AND POOLS; DEFINING TERMS; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS: PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY: PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Attorney Smith gave the second and tina! reading of Ordinance 2019-08 in title only. 

City Attorney Smith said that he received written comments regarding Line 88 and Line 
85 (Unfairly or overly restricting). 

Planner Hargrove said the origin of changes came ti·Otn screen enclosures and how they are 
treated differently. She said the question came up of what is the difference betvveen a property 
line with or without a pool. She said the change is to treat the mistake. She said there is no 
difference if it is a pool or pool with a screen enclosure; both can be five feet from the property 
line. Planner Hardgrove said that other changes were made in the Code as a result of this 
rens1on. She said some clean-up was done to ensure public safety and public nuisance, which 
led to limiting the number or structures you can have on a property. as vvell as the size. Planner 
Hargrove said there is no opposition to the screen enclosure; the opposition is to the number of 
structures and size. She said the impervious surface ratio (ISR) takes care or this. Planner 



l{cgular Council Meeting l\'Tinutes 1\0\ember 19,2019 Page 6 

Hargroye suggested an exception to the 200 square feet maximum of a detached garage. and 
increase to 600 square feet. 

Public Comments: 

Todd Nolan. 525 Linson Court 

Resident Nolan said it is not an issue no\Y of people with six sheds, and he would like this 
removed. His second concern \\·as the 200 square foot requirement; he said this isn't very big. 
City Attorney Smith confirmed for Council President Horn that the current code does not address 
number of structures or maximum square footage. City Attorney Smith said this is an increased 
regulation. Resident Nolan said the Ordinance addresses the size of a screen enclosure ''ithout 
any \ariance process or hearing. Resident Nolan confirmed for Attorney Smith that he doesn't 
oppose height restrictions as long as it is within the typical building parameters. 

Planner Hargrove said if Council is inclined to removed "f'' and u·. she recommends they add 
in "the square of all accessory structures including screen enclosures shall count for the 
impervious surface ratio maximum for the lot". 

Mayor Dowless noted his concern about height. Planner Hargrove said Orlando's Code states 
the height regulates the setback. City Attorney Smith confirmed for Council Member Rader that 
everything just discussed got a relaxed setback. Council Member Rader said this is a problem 
because a 35-foot workshop can now be five feet from the parking lot. Planner Hargrove said 
today you can build as many accessory structures as you want. and you can build them five feet 
from the property line. 

City Clerk Meeks said the biggest challenge right now are generators. In response to Council 
Members' questions, Planner Hargrove said there is a regulation that deals with appurtenant 
fixtures that specifically say side yard. Planner Hargrove said the appurtenant fixtures, i.e., 
generators and pool pumps, need to be removed. Discussion ensued regarding accessory 
structures and appmtenant fixtures. Council Member Fortini said to clarify in the Ordinance that 
the appurtenant structures should not be considered accessory structures. 

Council President Horn said he \\OL!ld like to see the remoYal of the number of accessory 
structures. He said you should be allmved to have what you want as long as it docs not exceed 
the !SR. He said he is also okay with the maximum of 200 square feet, but understands if 
someone \vanted a 12x24 shed. this exceeds the 200 square feet but is not excessiYe. 

Planner Hargrove said what she is hearing is to eliminate the number of units. She said square 
footage is still up for debate. She said to add in •·the height of accessory structures shall be 
sixteen feet unless such is located within the building envelope of the primary structure whereby; 
if so. the maximum height of the accessory structure shall be the same as the primary structure 
within the underlying zoning district". She agreed to taking out paragraph "f regarding 
impervious surface ratio, because the ISR will now apply to '·all" and not just screen enclosures. 



Regular· Councill\lccting Minutes November 19 1 2019 Page 7 

City Attorney Smith summarized stating that you remove ·r· and .. G ... vvhich is the number of 
structures and the square footage on accessory structures. In line 184 of the Ordinance. add 
"appurtenant structures shall not be construed as accessory structures... He said include a 
limitation on detached garages to a 600 square foot area. Also. restrict the types of accessory 
structures to sixteen feet unless the accessory structure is located vvithin the building envelope. 
City Attorney Smith said '·114 .. becomes .. F .. vv·hich applies to all accessory structures. vvhich is 
the !SR. Planner Hargrove said that under "Definition .. in line 134. take out playhouse and other 
appurtenant fixtures 

Council President Hom made the ltlotion to approve the Second/Final reading of Ordinance 
2019-08, as amended; Second by Counci!J'l'!ember Fortini. 

The Motion was apprm•ed by theji1llowing roll call vole (410): 
Council1l1ember Rader Yes 
Council fl,fember Pierce Yes 
Council fl,fember Fortini 
Council Pre,·ident Hom 
Council Member Clwtas 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

Yes 
Yes 
Absent 

• Request For Proposal ReYievv Committee - Recommendation for Debris Management 
Services 

Council Member Pierce gaYe a summary of the proposals. He said each member independently did their 
own review and ranking. The members selected the same top three companies. Council Member Pierce 
said the decision came dmvn to pricing of the three major serYices that would be needed. The 
committee's recommendation was SDR. Council Member Pierce said there \ras discussion regarding 
selecting a secondary company: however. the committee opted not to select a secondary proYider. 
Council Member Rader said he liked the idea of a secondary selection. City Attorney Smith said Council 
can select a primary and the Committee can come back to council with a recommendation for a secondary 
selection. 

Council 1l1ember Pierce made the Motiou to apprm•e the recommemlittion of SDR as the primary 
debris mwwgement service; Second by Council Member Fortini. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council1l1ember Fortini Yes 
Council Menther Pierce 
Council Member Rader 
Council President Horn 
Council Member Chotas 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Absent 



Regular Council Meeting i\:linutcs November 19,2019 Page 8 

I NEW BUSINESS 

I. RESOLUTION 2019-04- A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD. FLORIDA 
AMENDING THE CITY'S BUDGET FOR TilE 2018-2019 FISCAL YEAR: 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND/OR IllS DESIGNEE TO TAKE ALL ACTIONS 
NECESSARY TO IMPLEMENT THE TERMS AND CO:-.JDITIONS OF THIS 
RESOLUTION: PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

City Clerk Meeks referred Council and Staff to her agenda memo. Brief discussion \\as held. 

City Attorney Smith gm e the reading of Resolution 2019-04. 

There \\ere no pub! ic comments. 

Council Member Fortini made the J'l'lotionto approve Resolution 2019-04; Second by Council 
Member Rader. 

The Motion was approved by the following roll call vote (410): 
Council ~!ember Pierce Yes 
Council ~!ember Rader 
Council President Horn 
Council Member Fortini 
Council Member Cltotas 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Absent 

I GENERAL INFORMATION (No action required) 

COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENT: 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the City of Edgewood, Florida, jointly with the Presidential 
Preference Primary, will hold a general election on Tuesday, March 17. 2020 for the purpose of 
electing two City Council Members. The two candidates with the highest number of votes are 
deemed elected and will serve a three-year term. Qualifying begins on December 2, 2019 at 9 
a.m .. and ends December 6, 2019 at 4 p.m .. at the Office of the City Clerk. 405 Bagshaw Way, 
Edgewood. Florida 32809. 

Per Charter requirements, Council President Horn armounced the City's general election and 
qualifying information. City Clerk Meeks said that qualifying packets will be ready the week of 
November 25. 2019. 

I CITIZEN COMMENTS 

Resident Susan Lomas said she \\aS taken aback by Channel 13 ne\\S being in her neighborhood 
pmiicularlyl because they were there regarding the omission of non-ad valorem assessment on some 



Regular Council IVIeeting Minutes November 19,2019 Page 9 

resident's ta~ bill. She said she didn't understand "hy the residents had not been told. City Clerk Meeks 
said she \\aS waiting to complete the one-hundred plus forms that had to be signed by the Mayor and then 
fomarded to the County. along \\ith some other interruptions in preparing the forms. 

BOARDS & COMMITTEES 

• Bailey's Pharmacy- Variance 2019 and Waiver Application 

City Planner Hargrove provided her report regarding variance and \\aiver application of Bailey's 
Pharmacy. She said the applicant has revised their September proposal of five \\ai\ ers and one variance, 
to now two wai,ers: ofv,hich one is being sponsored by staff. Planner Hargrove said the site plan is for 
illustrati\·e purposes only. Planner Hargrove explained that the \\ai,er is for the "idth and length of 
sidewalk attached to the building, and the second waiver is sponsored by staff. The Planning & Zoning 
Board recommended approval. 

Planner Hargrove gave the conditions that staff is recommending for approval. She said understory trees 
are acceptable instead of the required shade trees. She said this is because of the distance between 
buildings. 

Council Member Rader said he wanted to make sure that an irrigated landscape buffer is included. 
Planner Hargro\'e said she anticipates the site plan gomg before the Planning & Zoning Board and 
Council in December. 

Mayor Do\\ less said that during staffs meeting with the applicant. they found \\ere there are some loop 
holes in the Code that need to be addressed in the future. 

Kim Fischer, engineer for the applicant, acknowledged that there were a lot of changes. She said the 
side,valk they plan will be covered. Planner Hargrove asked Ms. Ficsher if Bailey's could accommodate 
the landscape buffer on both sides of the driveway. Mayor Dowless said there are t\\O drive\vays: 
however, the proposed plan is for one driveway. 

Wai,er 1: The buffer on the South side of the dri,·eway is 3.45 feet and the buffer on the n01th side 6 
feet. 

Council Jl1ember Fortini made the Motion to approve JVaiver 1, with conditions as muended; Second 
by Council Member Rader, 

The lvlotionwm apprm•ed by the following roll calll'ote (410): 
Council President Horn Yes 
Council Member Fortini 
Council President Pierce 
Council JY!emher Rader 
Council Member Clwtas 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Absent 

Council Member Rader made the Motion to approve Waiver 2: Second by Council Member Fortini. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes November 19,2019 

Tile Jlotion was approved by the following roll call mte (410): 
Council A:Jenther Rader Yes 
Councii1Hember Pierce 
Cowtcif President Horn 
Councii1Hember Fortini 
Counci/1Hember Cltotas 

Yes 
Yes 
Yes 
Absent 

• 1141 Windsong Road- Variance (Boat dock) 

Page 10 

Engineer Lane presented his report and the three conditions recommended by the Planning & Zoning 
Board. Engineer Lane said both variances had the same conditions. He confirmed the total square 
footage of the boat dock is I 021 square feet. Engineer Lane said the new Ordinance would accommodate 
these variances. He said it \\as the" idth of the walk\\a) that tripped the variance. He said the Planning 
& Zoning Board recommended apprmal "ith conditions. lie said the conditions are (I) No alterations of 
I 0/14/2019 that would result in the increase of the square footage of the dock: (2) No mechanical 
additions that \\Ould result in increased size of the existing dock or of the shaded area: and (3) No 
addition of a second floor. Engineer Lane noted that if you increase the square footage of something. 
you are not repairing it. City Attorney Smith said the conditions could become inapplicable if code 
changes. 

Public Comment-

Melinda Elannan and Brittany Rediford (applicant and friend respecti1ely) 

Ms. Rediford explained ho" the .06% increase occurred. She said a neighbor docs not want the 
alltmance of a boat cover because it \\ill increase the shaded area. She asked Council to approve \\ithout 
the condition of the mechanical alteration condition (boat cover). Ms. Elannan said she was told that 
there is no permit process required to install a touchless boat cover. Council President Horn says that 
Orange County may not require a permit; however, the City considers a boat cover an alteration and this 
requires a permit. 

In response to Council Member Fortini, City Attorney Smith said the condition regarding the mechanical 
alteration \\as included as a condition because that is what the neighbor requested. Council President 
Horn said the applicant is not trying to make the boat dock larger: she just \\ants to cover her boat. He 
said on 1y the shaded area makes it larger. 

Council 1Hember Fortini made the Motion to apprm•e Variance 2019-03 with/he remol'{t/ of condition 
nw11her 2 (No mechanical additiom that would result in increased size of the existing dock or of the 
shaded area); Second by Council Member Pierce. 

The Motion was apprm•ed by thejiJIIowing roll call vote (410): 
Col/neil Member Pierce Yes 
Collncil President Hom Yes 
Col/neil Member Fortini 
Col/neil ~/ember Rader 

Yes 
Yes 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Nonmbcr 19,2019 Page II 

Council Member Chotas Absent 
Councillvlember Fortini made the 1Hotion to Apprm·e Variance 2019-02 (allow a boat dock exceeding 
more than 25% of the canal width}, striking condition number 2 (No mec/umical additions tit at would 
result in iucreased size of the existing dock or of t!te shaded area); Second by Council iii ember Rader 

The Motiouwas appnwed by theji1llowing roll call vote (410): 
Council 1l1e1nher Rader Yes 
Council President Pierce Yes 
Council President Hom 
Council iHember Fortini 
Council 1Hember Clwtas 

STAFF RFPORTS 

City Attorney Smith: 

• Disco\'ery Church Parking 

Ye. 
Yes 
Absent 

City Attorney Smith referred to a letter from Attorney Randi Fitzgerald. f-Ie confirmed that he talked to 
the attorney and let her know that he \\ould not provide a response until after the Council meeting. City 
Attorney Smith explained why he feels a variance would be required. Contrary to "hat is stated in the 
letter. he said the City has never said there cannot be a Church. f-Ie said the City is allowing status quo; 
hovvev·er. they are not allowing off-site parking across Orange Avenue. City Attorney Smith noted that 
the current parking agreement spells out the days of the week of Church service. He said he treats off-site 
parking across the roadway from the Church as a lavvf[ll non-conforming use. City Attorney Smith said 
he stands by the Church needing a variance if they deviate !rom the current Agreement. It was the 
consensus of Council that City Attorney Smith "stay on course" with what he presented to Council. 

Police Chief Freeburg: 

• Chiefs Report 

Chief Freeburg said the City had a successful Hallovveen event. f-Ie said Christmas is coming and that 
staff is currently planning the Santa Fly-ln. f-Ie also showed Council the new bags given to PD. The bags 
are an individual first aid kit (IFAC) for each officer. 

Cit)· Clerk Meeks: 

Cit) Clerk Meeks prov·ided the following rep011: 

• The $50,000 retainage related to Hurricane Irma has been paid per Council's request. 
• Landfall Strategies. to date, still has not prov·ided documentation requested from the 

Florida Division of Emergency Management. If the document is no provided, the City 
loses a reimbursement of $43,000 ( +/-). 

• The forms required to collect three year's arrearages of the City's non-ad valorem 
assessments are completed and ready for the Mayor"s signature. 



Regular Council Meeting Minutes NoYcmbcr 19 1 2019 Page 12 

• The Florida Department of Revenue confirmed that the City \\as in compliance with 
TRIM and Je, y. 

• Qualifying for the municipal election will be held the \\eek of December 2. 2019. 
beginning at 9 a.m. City Hall \\ill remain open until4 p.m. on Friday. December 6. 2019. 
\\hich is the closing day for qualifying. 

• Confirmed application is being made for a bre\\ery in Ft. Gatlin Shopping Center 
• Confirmed she will be on 'acation the \\eek of November 25. 2019. 
• Confirmed appropriation forms requesting funds for road work/maintenance. were 

submitted to Senator Linda Ste\\art and House Rep Anna Eskamani. 

MAYOR & COUNCIL REPORTS 

May·or Dowless-

Mayor Do\\ less gave kudos to staff for all their work in preparing for and working the Trunk or Treat 
event. 

Mayor Dowless said there is a need for more than one authorized online user for the City's banking. 
Currently, Lindsey Rock, \\ho is contracted through McDermit-Davis, is the only authorized user. Mayor 
Dowless said there needs to be a separation of powers. It was the coll,.e,"·m of Council to add il4ayor 
Dowless and City Clerk fl<!eeks as authorized o11li11e users of the Ci(r's bank accounts. 

Mayor Dmvless said City Hall and administrative operations of the Police Depat1ment "ill be closed 
Thanksgiving Day and the day after. He reminded Council about Santa's Fly-in scheduled for December 
13, 2019. He noted that City Hall and administrative operations of the Police Department will be closed 
Christmas Eve day and Christmas day. 

Mayor Dowless said he will prepare and send out a letter to those residents \\110 will receiYe non-ad 
valorem assessment letter requesting payment of arrearages. 

Council President Hom-

Council President Horn said Governor DeSantis is trying to push a law requiring underground utilities. 
fie said he is checking on the status of repair of the entranceway at Orange AYenue and Harbor Island 
Road. 

Council Member Chatas-

Absent. 

Council Member Fortini-

No report. 

Council Member Pierce-

No report. 



Regular Council Meeting 1\Iinutes 1\o\ember 19, 2019 Page 13 

Council Member Rader-

Noted that a to\\n hall meeting for the proposed sales tax \\as being held ··this evening··. \\hich created a 
conflict for council members who \\anted to attend. He said he is an advocate and feels that the Cit: 
should stay plugged-in and stay current" ith the proposed tax. 

I ADJOURNMENT 

Having no further business. the Council meeting adjourned at 9:33p.m .. on the Motion of Council 
Member Rader and Second by Council Member Pierce. 

Richard Alan Horn 
Council President 

Appro1'ed on 

Bea L. Meeks, MMC. CPM. CBTO 
City Clerk 



TO: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

I~ 

Mayor Dowless , Council President Hom a nd Council Members Chotas, 

Fortini, Pierce and Rader 

Deputy City Clerk Riffle, Police Chief Ft·eeburg, COS Patterson and City 

Attorney Smith 

December 13,2019 

McDermit:::Davis' Letter of Engagement 

On the Consent Agenda, is a copy of McDermi t:::Davis' Letter o f Engageme nt. In Council 's March 2019 
business meeting, you approved continuing with the accounting services provided by Mc Dermit:::::Davis. 

The City ' s Letter o f Engagement runs with the fiscal year, which is why the C ity is now being asked to 

The Le tter of Engagement continues to be the same, as those approved in previous years, and the fees are 

unchanged. 

Recommendation: Provide authorization to Mayor Dowless to sign Mc Dermi t:::::Davis' Letter o f 

Engagement, for the services approved in the March 19, 20 19 City Council meeting. 

li Page 



MCDIRMIT Ill DAVIS 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC A CCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS 

October 1, 2019 

John Dowless, Mayor 
City of Edgewood 
405 Bagshaw Way 
Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 

This letter is to confi rm our understanding of the terms and objectives of our engagement and the nature 
and limitations of the services we wi ll provide the City of Edgewood, Florida (the "City") for the fiscal year 
ending September 30, 2020. So that we can meet your expectations related to the services we wi ll provide, 
this engagement letter clearly identifies both the services that will be provided and the frequency with which 
these services will be provided. 

We wi ll perform the following services for all funds and accounts of the City: 
• Bookkeeping services 
• Compilation of financial statements 

Bookkeeping Services 
Services provided on a weekly basis: 

1. Process accounts payable 
a. Review coding by City Hall and PO on invoices 
b. Submit invoices to Mayor for his approval 
c. Enter invoices into PeachTree asAP 
d. Print checks; submit to Mayor or Council Member for signatures 
e. Make copies of all checks; mail payments in timely manner 
f. File copies of all payments in cabinet 
g. Process ACH payments for Red Light, GATSO, New Horizons , Verizon; enter payments in 

PeachTree once processed 
h. Update all AP spreadsheets 

2. Process cash receipts 
a. Prepare deposits for City Hall and PD (reviewing all coding) 
b. Count City Hall's cash drawer 
c. Enter ACH payments received in PeachTree 
d. Complete required red light reporting to the state 
e. Update all AR spreadsheets 

3. Post payroll journa l entries to Peachtree 

Services provided on a monthly basis: 
1. Reconcile all bank accounts to general ledger 
2. Process transactions on City's general ledger system and prepare compiled financial statements. 

We will not be independent in respect to the compiled financial statements. 

Services provided on an annual basis: 
1. Update/maintain the chart of accounts in the City's general ledger system (Peachtree) 
2 . Review City's budget totals provided by City staff, and enter into the City's general ledger system 

M c oiR..MIT D AVIS & C o MPANY, LLC 
934 N. M AGNOLIA AVENUE. SUITE 100 ORLANDO. FLORIDA 32803 

T : 407-8~3-5406 I F: 407-649-9339 I WWW.MCDIRMITDAVIS.COM 



City of Edgewood, Florida 
Engagement Letter 
Page 2 

We will not assume management responsibilities or make management decisions for you. However. we 
may provide advice, research materials, and recommendations to assist you in performing your functions 
and making decisions. You must agree to designate an individual who possesses suitable skill. knowledge. 
and/or experience. preferably within senior management, to perform the following functions in connection 
with our bookkeeping services: 

• Make all management decisions and assume all management responsibilities; 
• Designate an individual who possesses suitable skill. knowledge. and/or experience. preferably 

within senior management, to oversee the services; 
• Evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; 
• Accept responsibility for the results of the services; and 
• Establish and maintain internal controls, including monitoring ongoing activities 

Our responsibilities and limitations of the engagement are as follows: 
• We will perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards 
• This engagement is limited to the services previously outlined. Our firm, in its sole professional 

judgment, reserves the right to refuse to do any procedure or take any action that could be 
construed as making management decisions or assuming management responsibilities. 

Compilation of Financial Statements 
You have requested that we prepare the monthly financial statements of the City, which comprise the 
balance sheet as of each month end, and the related statements of revenue and expenditures for the 
months then ended, and perform a compilation engagement with respect to those financial statements. 
These financial statements will not include related notes to the financial statements. 

Our Responsibilities 
The objective of our compilation engagement is to: 

• Prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America based on information provided by you; and 

• Apply accounting and financial reporting expertise to assist you in the presentation of financial 
statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance that there are no material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements in order for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

In addition, the document we submit to you will include supplementary information. We will compile the 
supplementary information. but we will not audit or review such information, nor express an opinion. a 
conclusion, or provide any assurance on it. 

We will conduct our compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting 
and Review Services (SSARSs) promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the 
AICPA and comply with the AICPA's Code of Professional Conduct, including the ethical principles of 
integrity, objectivity, professional competence. and due care. 

We are not required to, and will not, verify the accuracy or completeness of the information you will provide 
to us for the engagement or otherwise gather evidence for the purpose of expressing an opinion or a 
conclusion. Accordingly, we will not express an opinion or a conclusion nor provide any assurance on the 
financial statements. 

Our engagement cannot be relied upon to identify or disclose any financial statement misstatements, 
including those caused by fraud or error. or to identify or disclose any wrongdoing within the Company or 
noncompliance with laws and regulations. 



City of Edgewood, Florida 
Engagement Letter 
Page 3 

Your Responsibilities 
The engagement to be performed is conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand that our 
role is to prepare financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America and assist you in the presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. You have the following overall 
responsibilities that are fundamental to our undertaking the engagement in accordance with SSARSs: 

• The selection of the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as 
the financial reporting framework to be applied in the preparation of the financial statements. 

• The preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

• The design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and 
fair presentation of the financial statements. 

• The prevention and detection of fraud. 
• To ensure that the entity complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities. 
• The accuracy and completeness of the records, documents, explanations, and other information, 

including significant judgments, you provide to us for the compilation engagement. 
• To provide us with: 

o Access to all information of which you are aware is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other 
matters. 

o Additional information that we may request from you for the purpose of the compilation 
engagement. 

o Unrestricted access to persons within the entity of whom we determine it necessary to 
make inquiries. 

You are also responsible for all management decisions and responsibilities and for designating an individual 
with suitable skills, knowledge, and experience to oversee our preparation of your financial statements. You 
are responsible for evaluating the adequacy and results of the services performed and accepting 
responsibility for such services. 

Our Report 
As part of our engagement, we will issue a report that will state that we did not audit or review the financial 
statements and that, accordingly, we do not express an opinion, a conclusion, nor provide any assurance 
on them. There may be circumstances in which the report differs from the expected form and content. 

Our report will disclose that the Company's management has elected to omit substantially all of the 
disclosures ordinarily included in financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America. If the omitted and disclosures were included in the 
financial statements, they might influence the user's conclusions about the company's financial position, 
results of operations and cash flows. Accordingly, the financial statements are not designed for those who 
are not informed about such matters. 

We will disclose that we are not independent in our compilation report. 

If, for any reason, we are unable to complete the compilation of your financial statements, we will not issue 
a report on such statements as a result of this engagement. 

You agree to include our accountant's compilation report in any document containing financial statements 
that indicates that we have performed a compilation engagement on such financial statements and, prior 
to inclusion of the report, to ask our permission to do so. 

Other Relevant Information 
Tammy Campbell is the engagement partner for the services specified in this letter. Her responsibilities 
include supervising our firm's services performed as part of this engagement and signing or authorizing 
another qualified firm representative to sign the accountant's report. 



City of Edgewood, Florida 
Engagement Letter 
Page 4 

With regard to the electronic dissemination of financial statements. including financial statements published 
electronically on your Internet website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distribute 
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider 
the consistency of other information in the electronic site with the original document. 

Our fees for these services are at our standard rates and will be billed on a monthly basis. Our monthly fee 
will be $2,600. 

Our fees for any additional services would be billed on an hourly basis at the following rates: 

Partner 
Manager 
Bookkeeper (Lindsey) 

$285 
175 
85 

You agree to release, indemnify, defend, and hold us harmless from any liability or costs, including 
attorney's fees, resulting from management's knowing misrepresentations to us or resulting from any 
actions against us by third parties relying on the financial statements described herein except for our own 
wrongdoing. 

We look forward to a continued relationship with your organization, and we are available to discuss the 
contents of this letter or other professional services you may desire. If you request us to perform additional 
services not contemplated or described in this engagement letter, we will provide you with a separate 
agreement describing those additional services and fees. 

We are pleased to confirm our acceptance and our understanding of these services by means of this letter. 
Please sign and return a copy of this letter to indicate your acknowledgement of, and agreement with, the 
arrangements for our engagement to provide these services described herein, and our respective 
responsibilities. 

Respectfully, 

McDirmit Davis & Company, LLC 

*************************************************************** 

RESPONSE: 

This letter correctly sets forth our understanding. 

City of Edgewood 

Acknowledged and agreed on behalf of City of Edgewood by: 

John Dowless, Mayor Date 



TO: City Council 
CC: Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
FROM: Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 
Date: December 9, 2019 
SUBJECT: Ordinance 2019-11 MS4/Stormwater Connections 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on December 9, 2019 to consider Ordinance 20 19-11: 

AN ORDl~ANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, RELATfNG TO ILLICIT 
STORMWATER CONNECTIONS AND DI SCHARGES; AMEN DING THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES; CREATING CHAPTER 30, "HEALTH AND SANITATION," ARTICLE V, 
" ILLICIT DISCHARGE PREVENTION"; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; CODIFICATION; 
SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Board Member Kreidt moved to recommend approval of Ordinance 2019-11; second by Board 
Member Gragg. Motion passed (410). 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-ll 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, 
RELATING TO ILLICIT STORMWATER CONNECTIONS 
AND DISCHARGES; AMENDING THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES; CREATING CHAPTER 30, "HEALTH AND 
SANITATION," ARTICLE V, "ILLICIT DISCHARGE 
PREVENTION"; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; 
CODIFICATION; SEVERABILITY; AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Edgewood appreciates the importance of 
protecting the City" s water bodies; and 

WHEREAS, in its annual audit, the Florida Department of Emironmental Protection 
commented on the need for proactive enforcement and inspection for potential illicit discharges into 
the City's stormwatcr system; and 

WHEREAS, in order to protect the City's water bodies from illicit discharges into the City's 
storm water system, the City Council finds it in the best interest of health, safety and welfare to adopt 
this Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, herein underlined words constitute additions to the City of Edgewood Code of 

Ordinances. strikethrough constitutes deletions from the originaL and asterisks(***) indicate an 

omission fi·om the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA THAT: 

SECTION 1. The provisions set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are hereby adopted by 
the City Council as the legislative findings and intent pertaining to this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2. The City of Edge,vood Code of Ordinances, Chapter 30, .. Health and 
Sanitation,'' Article V. '"Illicit Discharge Prevention,·· is hereby amended as follows: 

Chapter 30- HEALTH AND SANITATION 

* * * 

ARTICLE V.- ILLICIT DISCHARGE PREVENTION 

Sec. 30-54. Purpose and Intent. 

The purpose of this ordinance is to provide for the health. safety. and general welfare of the 
citizens of the City of Edgewood. Florida. through the regulation of non-stom1 \\ater discharges to 

ORDIXAI>CE 2019-11 



the storm drainage system to the maximum extent practicable as required by federal and state law. 
This ordinance establishes methods for controlling the introduction of pollutants into the municipal 
separate storm sewer system CMS4) in order to comply with requirements of the National Pollutant 
Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit process. The objectives of this ordinance are: 
( 1) To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the municipal separate storm sewer system 

CMS4) by stormwater discharges by any user 
(2) To prohibit Illicit Connections and Discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer system 
(3) To establish legal authority to cany out all inspection, surveillance and monitoring 

procedures necessary to ensure compliance with this ord inance 

Sec. 30-55. Definitions. 

For the purposes of this A1ticle, the following definitions shall apply: 

Best Afanagement Practices (BMPs) means schedules of activities. prohibitions of practices, general 
good house keeping practices. pollution prevention and educational practices. maintenance 
procedures. and other management practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly 
or indirectly to storm water, receiving waters, or stonnwater conveyance systems. BMPs also include 
treatment practices, operating procedures. and practices to control site runoff. spillage or leaks. 
sludge or water disposaL or drainage from raw materials storage. 

Clean Water Act means the federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seq.). and any 
subsequent amendments thereto. 
Construction Activity means activities subject to NPDES Construction Permits. These include 
construction projects resulting in land disturbance of 5 acres or more. Such activities include but are 
not limited to clearing and grubbing. grading. excavating. and demolition. 

Hazardous Materials means any materiaL including any substance, waste, or combination thereof. 
which because of its quantity, concentration, or physical, chemical, or infectious characteristics may 
cause. or significantly contribute to. a substantial present or potential hazard to human health. safety. 
property, or the environment when improperly treated, stored, transported, disposed of. or otherwise 
managed. 

11/egal Discharge means any direct or indirect non-storm water discharge to the storm drain system, 
except as otherwise expressly exempted herein. 

ll/icit Connections means an illicit connection is defined as either of the following: 
Any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which allows an illegal 
discharge to enter the storm drain system including but not limited to any conveyances which 
allow any non-storm water discharge including sewage. process wastewater, and wash water 
to enter the storm drain system and any connections to the storm drain system from indoor 
drains and sinks, regardless of whether said drain or connection had been previously allowed, 
permitted, or approved by an authorized enforcement agency: or 
Any drain or conveyance connected from a commercial or industrial land use to the storm 
drain system which has not been documented in plans. maps, or equivalent records and 
approved by an authorized enforcement agency. 

2 
ORDI NANCE 2019-11 



i ndustrial Activit!' means activities subject to 1 PDES Industrial Permits as defined in 40 CFR. 
Section 122.26 (b)(l4). 

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination Svstem (NPDES) Storm Water Discharge Permit means a 
pem1it issued by EPA (or by a State under authority delegated pursuant to 33 USC § 1342(b)) that 
authorizes the discharge of pollutants to waters of the United States. whetherthe permit is applicable 
on an individuaL group. or general area-wide basis. 

Non-Storm Water Discharge means any discharge to the storm drain system that is not composed 
entirely of storm water. 

Person means any individual. association. organization. partnership. firm. corporation or other entitv 
reco2.nized by law and acting as either the owner or as the owner's agent. 

Pollutant means anything which causes or contributes to pollution. Pollutants may include, but are 
not limited to: paints, varnishes, and solvents: oil and other automotive fluids: non-hazardous liquid 
and solid wastes and yard wastes: refuse. rubbish. garbage, litter. or other discarded or abandoned 
objects. ordinances. and accumulations. so that same may cause or contribute to pollution: floatables: 
pesticides. herbicides. and fertilizers: hazardous substances and wastes: se·wage. fecal coliform and 
pathogens; dissolved and particulate metals: animal wastes: wastes and residues that result from 
constructing a building or structure; and noxious or offensive matter of any kind. 

Premises means any building. lot. parcel of land, or p01tion of land whether improved or unimproved 
including ad jacent sidewalks and parking strips. 

Storm Drainage System means publicly-owned facilities by which storm water is collected and/or 
conveyed, including but not limited to any roads with drainage systems. municipal streets. gutters. 
curbs. inlets. piped storm drains. pumping facilities, retention and de tention basins. natural and 
human-made or altered drainage channels. reservoirs, and other dra inage structures. 
Storm Water means any surface flow. runoff, and drainage consisting entirely of water from any form 
of natural precipitation and resulting from such precipitation. 

Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan means document which describes the Best Management 
Practices and activities to be implemented by a person or business to identi fy sources of pollution or 
contamination at a site and the actions to eliminate or reduce pollutant discharges to Stormwater. 
Stonnwater Conveyance Systems, and/or Receiving Waters to the Maximum Extent Practicable. 
Wastewater means any water or other liquid. other than uncontaminated storm water. discharged 
from a fac ility. 

Sec. 30-56. Applicability. 

This ordinance shall apply to all water entering the storm drain system generated on any 
developed and undeveloped lands unless explicitly exempted by an authorized enforcement agency. 

Sec. 30-57. Responsibility for Administration. 

3 
ORDI 'ANCE 2019-11 



The City of Edgewood shall administer. implement. and enforce the provisions of this 
ordinance. Any powers granted or duties imposed upon the authorized enforcement agency mav be 
delegated in vvriting by the Mavor of the Citv of Edgewood to persons or entities acting in the 
beneficial interest of or in the employ of the agency. 

Sec. 30-58. Ultimate Responsibility. 

The standards set f011h herein and promulgated pursuant to this ordinance are minimum 
standards: therefore this ordinance does not intend nor imply that compliance bv anv person vvill 
ensure that there will be no contamination. pollution. nor unauthorized discharge of pollutants. 

Sec. 30-59. Discharge and Connection Prohibitions. 

No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the municipal storm drain system or 
watercourses anv materials. including but not limited to pollutants or waters containing anv 
pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable water qualitY standards. other than 
storm water. No person shall construct. use or continue anv illicit connection to the municipal stonn 
drain system. 

( 1) The following discharges are exempt from discharge prohibitions established bv this ordinance: 
water line flushing or other potable water sources. landscape irrigation or lawn watering. diverted 
stream flows. rising ground water. ground water infiltration to storm drains. uncontaminated 
pumped ground water. foundation or footing drains (not including activ-e groundwater dewatering 
svstems). crawl space pumps. air conditioning condensation. springs. non-commercial washing 
of vehicles. natural riparian habitat or wet-land flows. swimming pools (if dechlorinated -
1\pically less than one PPM chlorine). fire fighting activities. and any other water source not 
containing Pollutants: discharges specified in writing by the authorized enforcement agency as 
being necessao· to protect public health and safety: dye testing is an allowable discharge. but 
requires a verbal notification to the authorized enforcement agency prior to the time oft he test: 

(2) This prohibition shall not apply to any non-storm water discharge permitted under an NPDES 
permit. waiver. or waste discharge order issued to the discharger and administered under the 
authority of the Federal Environmental Protection Agency. provided that the discharger is in full 
compliance with all requirements of the permit. waiver. or order and other applicable laws and 
regulations. and provided that written approval has been granted for anv discharge to the storm 
drain system: 

Sec. 30-60. Suspension of MS4 Access. 

The Citv of Edgewood maY. without prior notice. suspend MS4 discharge access to a person 
vvhen such suspension is necessary to stop an actual or threatened discharge which presents or may 
present imminent and substantial danger to the environment. or to the health or welfare of persons. or 
to the MS4 or Waters of the United States. If the violator fails to comply with a suspension order 
issued in an emergency. the authorized enforcement agency may take such steps as deemed necessarv 

4 
ORIJI;-;A;-;CE 2019-11 



to prevent or minimize damage to the MS4 or Waters of the United States. or to minimize danger to 
persons. 

Anv person discharging to the MS4 in violation of this ordinance may ha\·e their MS4 access 
terminated if such termination would abate or reduce an illicit discharge. The CitY ofEdge\wod shall 
notifY a ,·iolator of the proposed termination of its MS4 access. The violator may petition Citv 
Council for a reconsideration and hearing. 

A person commits an o!Tense if the person reinstates MS4 access to premises terminated 
pursuant to this Section. without the prior approval of the Citv. 

Sec. 30-61. Industrial or Construction Activitv Discharges. 

Anv person subject to an industrial or construction activitv NPDES storm water discharge 
permit shall comply with all provisions of such permit Proof of compliance \\ith said permit may be 
reguired in a form acceptable to the City of Edgewood prior to the allowing of discharges to the 
MS4. 

Sec. 30-62. Monitoring Discharges. 

This section applies to all facilities that have storm \Yater discharges associated with 
industrial activity. including construction activity: 

(I) The City of Edgewood shall be permitted to enter and inspect facilities subject to regulation 
under this ordinance as often as may be necessary to determine compliance with this ordinance. 
If a discharger has security measures in force which reguire proper identification and clearance 
before entry into its premises. the discharger shall make the necessary arrangements to allow 
access to representatives of the City. 

(2) Facility operators shall allow the City of Edgewood readv access to all parts of the premises for 
the purposes of inspection. sampling. examination and copying of records that must be kept 
under the conditions of an NPDES permit to discharge storm water. and the perfonnance of any 
additional duties as defined bv state and federal law. 

(3) The Citv of Edgewood shall have the right to set up on any permitted facility such devices as are 
necessary in the opinion of the authorized enforcement agency to conduct monitoring and/or 
sampling of the facility's storm water discharge. 

( 4) The Citv of Edgewood has the right to require the discharger to install monitoring eguipment as 
necessary. The facility's sampling and monitoring equipment shall be maintained at all times in a 
safe and proper operating condition by the discharger at its own expense. All devices used to 
measure storm water flow and guality shall be calibrated to ensure their accuracy. 

(5) Anv temporary or permanent obstruction to safe and easy access to the facility to be inspected 
and/or sampled shall be promptly removed by the operator at the written or oral reguest of the 

5 
ORDINAi\CE 2019-11 



Citv of Edgewood and shall not be replaced. The costs of clearing such access shall be borne by 
the operator. 

(6) Unreasonable delavs in allowing the Citv of Edgewood access to a permitted facilitv is a 
violation of a storm water discharge permit and of this ordinance. A person 11·ho is the operator 
of a facility with a NPDES permit to discharge storm water associated with industrial activitv 
commits an offense if the person denies the authorized enforcement agencv reasonable access to 
the permitted facility for the purpose of conducting any activitv authorized or required by this 
ordinance. 

(7) If the Citv of Edgewood has been refused access to anv part of the premises from which 
stormwater is discharged. and he/she is able to demonstrate probable cause to believe that there 
may be a violation of this ordinance. or that there is a need to inspect and/or sample as part of a 
routine inspection and sampling program designed to verify compliance with this ordinance or 
any order issued hereunder. or to protect the overall public health. safety. and \Vel fare of the 
community. then the authorized enforcement agencv mav seek issuance of a search warrant from 
any court of competent jurisdiction. 

Sec. 30-63. Requirement to Prevent, Control, and Reduce Strom Water Pollutants by the Use 
of Best Management Practices. 

The City of Edgewood will adopt requirements identifying Best Management Practices for 
anv activity. operation. or facilitY which may cause or contribute to pollution or contamination of 
storm vvater. the storm drain system. or waters of the U.S. The owner or operator of a commercial or 
industrial establishment shall provide. at their own expense. reasonable protection from accidental 
discharge of prohibited materials or other wastes into the municipal storm drain system or 
watercourses through the use of these structural and non-structural BMPs. Further. any person 
responsible for a property or premise. which is. or may be. the source of an illicit discharge. may be 
required to implement. at said person's expense. additional structural and non-structural BMPs to 
prevent the further discharge of pollutants to the municipal separate stonn se\\·er system. Compliance 
with all terms and conditions of a valid NPDES permit authorizing the discharge of storm water 
associated with industrial activity. to the extent practicable. shall be deemed compliance with the 
provisions of this section. These BMPs shall be part of a stonnwater pollution prevention plan 
(SWPP) as necessary for compliance with requirements of the NPDES permit. 

Sec. 30-64. Watercourse Protection. 

Every person owning property through which a watercourse passes. or such person's lessee. 
shall keep and maintain that part of the watercourse within the propertv free of trash. debris. 
excessive vegetation. and other obstacles that would pollute. contaminate. or significantlyretard the 
flow of water through the watercourse. In addition. the owner or lessee shall maintain existing 
privately owned structures within or adjacent to a watercourse. so that such structures will not 
become a hazard to the use. function. or plwsical integritv of the watercourse. 

6 
ORIJII>:Aio:CE 2019-1 I 



Sec. 30-65. Notification of Spills. 

Notwithstanding other requirements oflaw. as soon as anv person responsible for a facility or 
operation. or responsible for emergencv response for a facility or operation has information of anv 
kno\\n or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illegal discharges or 
pollutants discharging into storm water. the storm drain system. or water of the U.S. said person shall 
take all necessary steps to ensure the discoverv. containment. and cleanup of such release. In the 
event of such a release of hazardous materials said person shall inunediatelv notify emergency 
response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a release of 
non-hazardous materials. said person shall notify the authorized enforcement agency in person or bv 
phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or bv phone shall be 
confirmed bv written notice addressed and mailed to the City of Edgewood within three business 
davs of the phone notice. If the discharge of prohibited materials emanates from a commercial or 
industrial establishment. the owner or operator of such establishment shall also retain an on-site 
written record of the discharge and the actions taken to prevent its recurrence. Such records shall be 
retained for at least three years. 

Sec. 30-66. Enforcement. 

Whenever the City of Edgewood finds that a person has violated a prohibition or failed to 
meet a requirement of this Ordinance. the authorized enforcement agencv mav order compliance by 
written notice of violation to the responsible person. Such notice mav require without limitation: 

(a) The performance of monitoring. analyses. and reporting; 

(b) The elimination of illicit connections or discharges: 

(c) That violating discharges. practices. or operations shall cease and desist; 

(d) The abatement or remediation of storm water pollution or contamination hazards and the 
restoration of any affected property: and 

(e) Pavment of a fine to cover administrative and remediation costs: and 

2 (Q The implementation of source control or treatment BMPs. 

3 If abatement of a violation and/or restoration of affected pro pert\' is reguired. the notice shall set 
4 forth a deadline within which such remediation or restoration must be completed. Said notice shall 
5 further advise that. should the violator fail to remediate or restore \Vi thin the established deadline. the 
6 work will be done by a designated governmental agency or a contractor and the expense thereof shall 
7 be charged to the violator. 

8 

9 Sec. 30-67. Appeal of Notice of Violation. 

to 

II Anv person receiving a Notice of Violation mav appeal the determination of the City to the 
12 Code Enforcement Hearing Officer. The notice of appeal must be received within tifteen davs from 
13 the date of the Notice of Violation. Hearing on the appeal before the Code Enforcement Hearing 

7 
ORDI'iAi'iCE 2019-11 



14 Ofticer shall take place within thirtv davs from the date of deliverv of the notice of appeal. The 
15 decision of the Code Enforcement Hearing Otlicer shall be tina I. 

16 

17 Sec. 30-68. Enforcement Measures After Appeal. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 
26 

27 

If the violation has not been corrected pursuant to the requirements set forth in the Notice of 
Violation. or. in the event of an appeal. within thirtv days of the decision of the Code Enforcement 
Hearing Otlicer upholding the decision of the authorized enforcement agency. then representatives of 
the authorized enforcement agency shall enter upon the subject private property and are authorized to 
take anv and all measures necessary to abate the violation and/or restore the propertv. It shall be 
unlavvful for any person. owner. agent or person in possession ofanv premises to refuse to allow the 
government agency or designated contractor to enter upon the premises for the purposes set forth 
above. 

28 Sec. 30-69. Cost Abatement of the Violation. 

29 

30 Within thirty days after abatement of the violation. the owner of the propertv will be notified 
31 of the cost of abatement. including administrative costs. The property owner may file a written 
32 protest objecting to the amount of the assessment within fitieen days. If the amount due is not paid 
33 within a timelv manner as determined by the decision of the municipal authority or by the expiration 
34 of the time in which to file an appeal. the charges shall become a special assessment against the 
35 property and shall constitute a lien on the property for the amount of the assessment. 

36 

37 i\nv person violating any of the provisions of this m1icle shall become liable to the City by 
38 reason of such violation. The liability shall be paid in not more than 12 equal payments. Interest at 
39 the rate of twelve percent per annum shall be assessed on the balance beginning on the 1st dav 
40 following discovery of the violation. 

41 

42 Sec. 30-70. Injunctive Relief. 

43 

44 It shall be unlawful for any person to violate anv provision or fail to comply with anv of the 
45 requirements of this ordinance. If a person has violated or continues to violate the provisions of this 
46 ordinance, the authorized enforcement agency may petition for a preliminary or permanent injunction 
47 restraining the person from activities which would create further violations or compelling the person 
48 to perform abatement or remediation of the violation. 

49 

so Sec. 30-71. Compensaton· Action. 

51 

52 In lieu of enforcement proceedings. penalties. and remedies authorized bv this ordinance. the 
53 authorized enforcement agency mav impose upon a violator alternative compensatory actions. such 
54 as storm drain stenciling, attendance at compliance workshops. creek cleanup. etc. 

8 
ORDt'iAi'ICE 2019-tl 



55 

Sec. 30-72. Violations Deemed a Public Nuisance. 

In addition to the enforcement processes and penalties provided. anv condition caused or 
permitted to exist in violation of anv of the provisions of this ordinance is a threat to public health. 
safetY. and ,,·elfare. and is declared and deemed a nuisance. and maY be summarilY abated or restored 
at the violator's expense. and/or a civil action to abate. enjoin. or otherwise compel the cessation of 
such nuisance may be taken. 

Sec. 30-73. Criminal Prosecution. 

Anv person that has violated or continues to violate this ordinance shall be liable to criminal 
prosecution to the fullest extent of the law. 

The Citv may recover all attorney" s fees court costs and other expenses associated with 
enforcement of this ordinance. including sampling and monitoring expenses. 

Sec. 30-74. Remedies not Exclusive. 

The remedies listed in this ordinance are not exclusive of any other remedies available under 
any applicable federal. state or local law and it is within the discretion of the authorized enforcement 
agency to seek cumulative remedies. 

Section 3: Conflicts. All ordinances or pans thereof in cont1ict herewith are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4: Severability. If any section. paragraph. subsection, sentence, clause. phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such pol1ion shall be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision and such 
holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining pol1ions hereof. 

Section 5: Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as and become 
and be made a part of the Code ol Ordinances ol the City ol Edgnmod. The Sections of this 
Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention and the word "Ordinance ... 
or similar words, may be changed to "Section,"' "Al1icle". or other appropriate word. The Code 
codifier is granted liberal authority to cod if)' the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of _______ . 2020. by the City 
Council of the City of Edgewood. Florida. 

9 
ORDI'>A'>CE 2019-11 



PASSED ON FIRST READING: ______ _ 

PASSED ON SECOND READING: __________ _ 

Richard A. Horn. Council President 

ATTEST 

Bea L. Meeks 
City Clerk 

10 
ORDI:"'Ai':CE 2019-11 



TO: City Council 

CC: Bea Meeks, City Clerk 

FROM: Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 

Date: December 9, 2019 

SUBJ ECT: Ordinance 2019-12 Beauty Salons 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on December 9, 20 19 to consider Ordinance 20 19-1 2: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 
134-1, "DEFINITIONS," OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES TO CREATE A 
DEFINITION FOR THE TERM BEAUTY SALON; PROVIDING THAT PERMANENT 
MAKEUP APPLICATION AND LASER HAIR REMOVAL ARE SERVICES THAT 
MAY BE PROVIDED AT A BEAUTY SALON; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Board Member Santurri moved to recommend approval of Ordinance 2019-12 with changes 
encapsulated from discussion; Second by Board Member Kreidt. Motion passed (410). 



ORDINANCE NO. 2019-12 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING SECTION 134-1, 
"DEFINITIONS," OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
TO CREATE A DEFINITION FOR THE TERM 
BEAUTY SALON; PROVIDING THAT PERMANENT 
MAKEUP APPLICATION AND LASER HAIR 
REMOVAL ARE SERVICES THAT MAY BE 
PROVIDED AT A BEAUTY SALON; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

WHEREAS, businesses located within the City of Edgewood have inquired as to the 
permissibility of providing permanent makeup and laser hair removal at beauty salons: and 

WHEREAS, the City Code does not currently contain a definition for "beauty salons;'' 
and 

WHEREAS, the City's zoning Code prohibits tattoo parlors in commercial districts; and 

WHEREAS, permanent makeup application is regulated by the State of Florida in the 
same manner as tattoo application; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds it appropriate for permanent makeup application to be 
an allo,ved service at beauty salons; and 

WHEREAS, the City's Code neither expressly permits nor prohibits laser hair removal 
from being performed at beauty salons; and 

WHEREAS, in the interest of clarity, the City Council finds it appropriate to provide that 
laser hair removal treatments are a service allowed to be provided at beauty salons; and 

WHEREAS, herein underlined words constitute additions to the City of Edgewood Code 

of Ordinances, strikethrough constitutes deletions from the original, and asterisks(***) indicate 

an omission from the existing text which is intended to remain unchanged. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA THAT: 

SECTION 1. The provisions set forth in the recitals of this Ordinance are hereby adopted 
by the City Council as the legislative findings and intent pertaining to this Ordinance. 

SECTION 2. The City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 134-1, "Definitions,'' 

1 

ORDINANCE 2019-12 



is amended as follO\Ys: 

Basement means a portion of a building located partly or wholly underground. but haYing less 
than half its clear floor-to-ceiling height below the average grade of the adjoining ground. 

Beautr Salon means an establishment where people go to receiw beauty treatments which 

include some or all of the following: cutting. shampooing. weaving, coloring. waving. or stvling 

hair; hair removaL including laser hair removal: facials: applying makeup. including permanent 

makeup: and nail care services. 

Blank Wall means a portion of the exterior facade of the building that does not include 
windows or doors. columns. pilasters or other articulation greater than 18 inches in depth. 

Section 3: Conflicts. All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict herewith are hereby 
repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 4: Severability. If any section, paragraph, subsection, sentence. clause, phrase or 
portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate, distinct. and independent 
provision and such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 

Section 5: Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as and become 
and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Edgel!'ood. The Sections of this 
Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention and the word 
"Ordinance''. or similar words, may be changed to ··section,'' "Article", or other appropriate word. 
The Code codifier is granted liberal authority to codify the provisions of this Ordinance. 

Section 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this __ day of _______ , 2020, by the City 
Council of the City of Edgewood. Florida. 

PASSED ON FIRST READING: _________ _ 

PASSED ON SECOND READING: _________ _ 

Richard A. Horn, Council President 

ATTEST 

Bea L. Meeks 
City Clerk 

2 
ORDINANCE 2019-12 



TO: 
CC: 
FROM: 
Date: 
SUBJECT: 

City Council 
Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 
December 9, 2019 
Ordinance 2019-10 Boat Docks 

The Planning and Zoning Board met on December 9, 201 9 to consider Ordinance 2019- 10: 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 
14-11 OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF ORDINANCES REGARDING RULES 
AND REGULATIONS FOR BOAT DOCK CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

Chair Rayburn moved to recommend approval of Ordinance 2019-10; Second by Board Member 
Santurri. Motion passed (410). 



2 ORDINANCE NO. 2019-10 

4 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA 
5 AMENDING CHAPTER 14-11 OF THE CITY OF EDGEWOOD CODE OF 
6 ORDINANCES REGARDING RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR BOAT 
7 DOCK CONSTRUCTION; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
8 FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND 
9 PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

10 
II WHEREAS, the City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances includes rules and regulations as 
12 to where and how boat docks may be constructed: and 
13 
14 WHEREAS. City staff has recommended amendments to certain regulations regarding 
15 boat dock construction and permitting; and 
16 
17 WHEREAS, members of the public have requested amendments to certain regulations 
18 regarding boat dock construction and permitting; and 
19 
20 WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board has reviewed this Ordinance and 
21 recommended to the City Council approval of same; and 
22 
23 WHEREAS, the City Council finds the amendments contained herein are reasonable and 
24 appropriate and in the best interest of the health, safety, and welfare of the residents of the City 
25 of Edgewood; and 
26 
27 WHEREAS. deletions are identified herein by striketfireugh, additions are identified by 
28 underscore and portions of the Code remaining unchanged \Yhich are not reprinted here are 
29 identified by ellipses***). 
30 
31 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
32 CITY OF EDGEWOOD, FLORIDA as follows: 
33 
34 Section 1: The recitals set forth above are hereby adopted as findings of the City 
35 Council. 
36 
37 Section 2: Chapter 14, '·Boats, Docks and Waterways" is hereby amended to read as 
38 follows: 
39 
40 Chapter 14 · BOATS, DOCKS AND WATERWAYS 

41 Sec. 14- I. · Definitions. 

42 For the purpose of this chapter, the follmving words and phrases shall have the meanings 
43 described to them by this section: 

I 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



44 Access lm/lomr means that portion of a dock that commences on the upland parcel and 

45 terminates at the junction \\ith the terminal platform. 

46 Boats means all rowboats. sailboats, canoes. dingies. skiffs. ratts. dugouts. dredges and other 
47 vehicles of transportation for use on \\ater. including inboard and outboard motorboats. unless 
48 otherwise indicated; and any and all objects tied to or connected therc\\ith while being propelled 
49 through the \\ater. 

50 Dock means any permanently fixed or floating structure extending from the upland into the 
51 water, capable of use for \esse! mooring and other water-dependent recreational activities. The 
52 term "dock" also includes any floating structure. boat !itt or mooring piling. detached from the 
53 land. capable of use for mooring vessels and/or for other water-dependent recreational activities. 
54 The term "dock" also includes any area adjacent to the dock designated for mooring purposes. 
55 This tenn does not include any vessel that is not permanently docked. moored. or anchored. 

56 Inboard motorboat means any boat \Yhich is propelled by any stationary or built-in 
57 mechanical device or means of po\\er. 

58 Lit/oral rights means rights incident to ownership of property abutting a lake. canal, or other 
59 \\aters. 

60 XHJVE means the normal high \\·ater elevation for a water body as established by Orange 
61 County. Florida. 

62 Outboard motorboat means any boat which is propelled by any mechanical device or means 
63 of power which is not stationary or built-in. 

64 Principal use means a use of the upland parcel for residential, commercial or governmental 
65 purposes. At a minimum. a principal use shall be established by the issuance of a building permit 
66 for a principal structure. 

67 Riparian rights means the right of a landO\mer whose property borders on a body of 
68 navigable waters to make reasonable use of the water equal to the rights of other owners of land 
69 bordering on the same waters. 

70 Routine maintenance and repair means those tasks necessary to keep a dock in a safe and 
71 useable condition consistent \\ith the original design specifications and shall include replacement 
72 of the any walking surface but shall not include replacement of anv structural load bearing 
73 con1ponents. 

74 Terminal plat[orm means that portion of a dock designed and used for the storing. 

75 mooring. and launching of water vessels or other water dependent acti\·ities. 

76 Waters bodies means and includes, but is net limitea te. lakes, streams, waterways. bays, 

77 inlets. canals, and all other waters or bodies of water, whether natural or artificial. located within 

78 the boundaries of the City of Edgewood. 

79 * * * 

80 Sec. 14-11. - Beat EIDock construction rules and regulations. 

2 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



81 (a) 
82 

83 
84 

85 
86 

87 

88 
89 
90 

91 
92 

93 
94 
95 

96 
97 
98 

99 

100 

I 0 I 
102 
103 
104 

105 

106 
107 
108 

109 

II 0 
Ill 

112 

Applications submitted for ne\\ docks and alterations to existing docks shall include all of 
the follo,,ing: 

(I) Three copies of a site plan drmm to scale '' hich depicts the exact location of the 
dock and which includes the following: 

a. An arrow indicating the northerly direction and the scale to which the plans \Yel"C 

prepared: 

b. The name of the water bodv upon \Yhich the dock is to be located: 

c. The exact distance between the existing shoreline. at the point where the dock is 

to be located. and a permanent object or marker (e.g. house. tree. USGS 

benchmark) to be used as a reference point: 

d. The exact setback distance from adjacent property lines and projected property 

lines to all portions of the dock: 

e. Floor and roof elevations of the proposed dock structure connected to the dock. 

and floor and roof elevations of anv existing dock. including mw structures 

currentlv or proposed to be connected the dock: 

C The current water depth at the end of the dock and at all proposed moonng 

locations and the approximate depth of navigable \\aters bevond the dock and 

mooring locations; 

g_ The NHWE: 

h. The location of any litis. hoists. mooring pilings. or mooring areas: 

i. The exact dimensions of the dock. including the terminal platform and access 

walkway, and the specific individual dimensions of the terminal platform. access 
\valkway. and any roof structures: the length of the dock shall be measured from the 

NHWE to the point of the dock furthest waterward from the NHWE: 

j. A survcv of the property that accurately depicts current conditions: and 

k. The width of the water body at the location of the dock as measured ti·01n the 

NHWE at the location where the dock is constructed or proposed to the NHWE 

directly opposite the water body from such location: 

(2) Satisfactory evidence of title: 

(3) Documentation shO\ving the riparian rights of the property on which the dock 1s 

located or proposed; 

( 4) A statement indicating whether any docks are located on abutting properties: and 

3 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



11 3 

114 

11 5 

116 
117 

118 
119 
120 

121 
122 
123 

124 
125 

126 
127 

128 

129 
130 
131 

132 
133 
134 

135 
136 

137 
138 

139 

140 

141 

142 
143 
144 
145 
146 

(5) Three copies of engineered construction plans. 

( 1) The name of the lake or water body. 

(2) An arro'<v indicating the northerly direction. 

(3) All drawings must be drawn at a standard engineering scale, and the drawings 
must indicate the scale to which the plans are prepared. 

(4) A sealed drawing showing the dimensions of the subject property, location of any 
buildings and easements on the property, and the length and location of the proposed 
boat dock (length shall be measured from the normal high water line). 

(5) The exact distance bet'Neen the e)fisting shoreline; at the point where the dock is to 
be constructed; and a permanent object or structure (e.g., house, tree) to be used as a 
reference point. 

(6) The exact distance of setbacks from adjacent property lines, and an approximation 
of the distance from the closest boat dock on each side of the property. 

(7) The floor elevation of the proposed boat dock, and the floor and roof elevation of 
any boathouse or any other structure connected to the dock. 

(8) Depth of water at end of proposed dock. 

(9) A survey prepared by a Florida registered surveyor and mapper of the property 
shovling the normal high water line as established by Orange County and the proposed 
dock, to scale, with the length , orientation and setbacks as established by this article. 

(10) Width of the waterway or canal at the location ofthe proposed dock, if said water 
body or canal is less than 200 feet in width (a ll measurements to be taken from the 
normal high water line). 

(1 1) The original signature(s) of the property owner(s) upon which the upland portion 
of the dock is to be constructed. 

(12) The original signature(s) of the applicant(s), if the applicant is not the property 
owner. 

( 13) A statement indicating whether docks are located on abutting properties. 

(14) Applicants may submit the following information with their applications: 

a. A request for a variance under this m1icle. 

b. Notarized, original , and signed letters of no objection from the abutting 
shoreline property owners, when applicable. The letters of no objection must 
identify the site plan and construction plan for the proposed dock, and a copy 
of the site plan and construction plan must be attached to the letter submitted 
to the city. 

14 7 (b) To obtain a dock construction permit, the following criteria, at a minimum, must be 
148 satisfied: 

149 
150 
151 

(1) Minimum side setbacks Lake c:nd ccmel properties. Except as otherwise provided 
belovv&at docks and associated structures shall have a minimum side setback of 
teRfifteen feet from the projected side property line of abutting shoreline owners. A dock 

4 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



152 
153 
154 
155 
156 
157 
158 
159 
160 
161 
162 

163 
164 
165 

166 
167 
I68 
169 
170 
171 
172 
173 
174 
175 
176 
177 
178 
179 
180 
181 
182 
183 
184 

185 
186 
187 
188 
189 
190 
191 
192 
193 

194 
195 

mav encroach up to ll\·e feet into the fifteen foot side setback if the applicant submits as 
pm1 of the application an original notarized letter of no objection from the 0\mer of the 
property on the side or sides \vi thin \Vhich such encroachment occurs. if tl;e side setback 
is less than 15 feeL then the applicant shall submit notarized, originaL signed letters of 
no objection from the abutting shoreline property owners. The letter of no objection 
must identify the site plan and construction plan for the proposed dock. and a copy of 
the site plan and construction plan must be attached to the letter submitted to the city. 
For purposes of this determination, and in the absence of property lines that alrcad0 
project into the \\ater body. the projected property line of abutting shoreline 0\mers 
shall be construed to mean a line projecting from the shoreline into the water 90 degrees 
from the abutting property owner's shoreline. 

(2) I.fhimum rear sc!eaek Canal prepcr:ics. Boat docks and associated structures 
shall have a minimum setback of 25 feet from the abatting rear property lines of 
property owners on the opposite shoreline of any canal. 

(;};;'_) Length of OO£If docks. No dock shall extend further into a waterbodv than where 
a reasonable water depth for a single vessel mooring is achieYed. and in no event shall 
such depth exceed live (5) feet during normal hydrological conditions unless existing 
natural conditions of the waterbodv necessitate a greater water depth to allow safe 
mooring conditions. No dock shall be constructed or extended to a length more than 
twentv live percent (25%) of the navigable corridor or to a length that would adversely 
impact the rights of other persons use of and access to the water body. In no 
circumstance shall a 00at dock be constructed or extended nor shall a vessel be moored 
at 9oat a dock in such a manner as would cause the navigable width of the water bodv 
at the location of the dock to fall below (25) twenty-five feet as measured from the 
most waterward point of the dock or moored boat to the nearest permanent obstruction 
to navigation. The maximum permitted length of boat docks and other structures which 
shall include walkways. boat house and terminal platforms shall not exceed 65 feet as 
measured from the normal high water line as establishes by Orange County, Florida, as 
marked by a registered surveyor and mapper, anless a variance is secures from the city 
council. No dock on a canal or otherwise shall extend waterward of the mean or ordinary 
high water line more than 25 percent of the width of the water body at the location of the 
dock. This is to assure that other property owners will retain their rights or reasonable 
use of. and access to, the lake. 

(4}) Enclosed structures. Other than for repair or reconstruction of existing structures. 
no structures having enclosed sidewalls are permitted. Enclosed shall be dellned as, by 
way of example but not by limitation. screen houses, chain link fencing, lattice fencing 
and any form of paneling. In the case of existing enclosed structures or grandfathered 
structures. reconstruction, renovation. and repair shall be permitted as long as the 
footprint of the existing structures is maintained, the structure is not expanded as 
documented by the applicant, and adjacent propet1y owners consent thereto in writing. 
Examples of such documentation may include but not be limited to surveys, 
photographs. contractors', engineers'. or site plans. 

(~±) Height of OO£If docks. The minimum height of OOat-docks shall place them one 
foot abO\c normal high water elevation the NHWE of the applicable water bodvlake as 

5 
ORDINANCE 20t9-10 



196 
197 

198 
199 
200 
201 
202 
203 
204 
205 

206 
207 
208 

209 

210 
211 

212 
213 
214 
215 

216 

established by Orange COtmty. The maximum height shall be 13 feet abow the nonnal 
high water line NHWE of the applicable water bodvtake. 

(6.2_) Square .fhotage oj:.fieaf docks. The maximum square footage of the terminal 

platform shall not exceed the square footage of ten times the linear shoreline frontage 

for the first seventv-five (75) feet of shoreline and five times the linear shoreline 

frontage for each foot in excess of seventv-five (75) feet. not to exceed a maximum of 

one thousand ( LOOO) square feet. Access walk\vavs shall not be included in the 

maximum square footage calculation. Roof eaves that do not extend more than three 

feet beyond the terminal platform shall not be included \Yithin the maximum square 

footage calculation. 

No boat doelc shall exceed 1.000 square feet in total area. The total area of the dock is 
that portion of the dock lying waterward ef the nermal high water line of the applicable 
lake or water body. 

(6) Access lmikH·m·s. Access walkways shall not exceed fi,·e feet in width. 

(7) Docks prohibited in easements. No work shall be \\·ithin areas which are legal 
easements for ingress or egress. drainage, or utilities. 

(8) Construction of more than one dock per residential lot is not permitted. However. 
eOnc dock !HaJ' shall be allowed pennitterl on each water body to which a residential lot 
has frontage tf when there is no navigable connection between the \\·atcr bodies. In no 
other circumstances shall more than one dock per residential lot be allowed. 

(9) Under no circumstances shall a beat-dock be utilized for residential purposes. 

217 (c) Application procedures. 

218 
219 
220 
221 
222 
223 
224 
225 
226 

227 
228 
229 
230 
231 
232 
233 
234 
235 
236 

(I) The beat-dock permit application, and application fee a permit fee, three site plans 
aFHl three sets of engineered eenstruetien plans. ana any other Eleeumerlts as set ferth 
abffi'e shall be submitted to the city clerk's office. Any question regarding the beat-dock 
permit application will be answered by that depm1ment. the city engineer. or city 
building official. The city clerk shall fotward the application and all pertinent documents 
to the city engineer for his/her review and recommendation. Unless a variance from the 
provisions hereof is requested or required, the city engineer is authorized to approve 
such applications meeting the requirements of this article following the receipt of a 
complete application. 

(2) Notices to neighboring shoreline property Oll"llers. Upon receiving the application. 
the clerk shall send notices by first-class mail to the owners of the properties abutting 
the property, other property owners who could be affected by the new dock because of 
any unusual configuration of the shoreline as determined by the city engineer or 
designee, and any other shoreline property owners within 300 feet of the property on 
which the dock is to be located. All such notices shall require that written comments on 
the proposed beat-docks permit application be sent to the clerk within 15 calendar days 
from the date such notices are sent. If no written objections are returned by property 
O\mers receiving notice. such owners shall be deemed to have given consent and to have 
waived their right to object to the construction of the dock. If notices sent by first-class 

6 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



237 
238 
239 
240 
241 

242 
243 
244 
245 

246 
247 
248 
249 

250 
251 
252 
253 
254 
255 
256 

257 
258 
259 
260 
261 
262 
263 
264 
265 

266 

267 

268 

269 
270 
271 
272 
273 
274 

275 
276 
277 
278 

mail to nearby properties are returned to the city. or if the city has reason to belie\'e that 
the notice is undeliverable as addressed. the city shall use its best efforts to determine 
the current address of any neighboring property owners entitled to notice herein and 
shall use its best efforts to notify such current neighboring property O\\ners of the 
proposed dock. 

(3) Approml hy the city engineer. Except as prO\ ided bY paragraph (5). below. +!he 
city engineer is authorized to approve such applications after 15 calendar days from the 
date notices are sent so long as the minimum criteria are met and the application is 
complete in all other respects pursuant to this article. 

w.(4) Appeal o(city engineer's decision. The applicant or any person entitled to notice 
under this article may appeal a decision of the city engineer regarding the interpretation 
of the contents of the application or the minimum criteria set forth in this section. City 
council shall consider such appeal at its next available regularly scheduled meeting. 

(4~_) Decision hy city council. The city engineer is not authorized to approve any 
applications where there are objections from any shoreline property owner within 300 
feet of the property or other property owner entitled to notice under subsection (2) 
above. or where the city engineer or building oftlcial, in his or her discretion. believes 
the application should be decided by city council. When an application for a seat dock 
must se decided sy city eoancil, the applicant shall submit a total of nine site plans and 
three sets of engineered construction plans to the city clerk's office. 

a. When city council must decide the application for a Beat dock permit. city council 
shall approve, deny, or appro\'e \\ith conditions the application to construct the 
Beat dock at its next available regularly scheduled meeting. Notices of the hearing 
before city council shall be sent to the applicant and any person entitled to notice 
under this article. In determining whether to approve, deny. or approve with 
conditions the application, city council shall determine whether the application has 
been satisfactorily completed and whether the minimum criteria set forth above for 
issuance of the dock pern1it have been met. In addition. city council shall ~ 
consider the following criteria factors: 

I. Possible obstruction to na\'igability: 

2. Unreasonable impairment of lake view visibility from abutting properties; 

3. Hazardous or safety conditions; and 

4. Whether the proposed structure unreasonably interferes with the riparian or 
littoral rights of other property owners. "Unreasonable interference" shall 
include but not be limited to: (a) proximity of docks of abutting property 
owners; (b) access for boaters and swimmers: and (c) any unusual 
configuration of the shoreline which \\Ould cause the proposed dock to restrict 
access to sections of the waterway. 

b. The decision of the city council shall be in \\Tiling and shall indicate the date of the 
decision. Copies of the decision shall be sent by regular mail to the applicant and to 
those who previously filed written objections to the application. The decision of 
city council shall be final. 

7 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



279 (d) r 'arhmces. 

280 
281 
282 
283 
284 
285 
286 
287 
288 
289 
290 

291 
292 
293 
294 

295 

296 

297 

298 

299 
300 
301 

302 

303 
304 

305 
306 
307 
308 

309 
310 
311 

(I) An application for variance fi,om the requirements of this article mm: sBal-l be 
submitted to the citv made te the planning and zening beard simultaneeas with the 
submission of the boat deck application and permit fee. When a variance is requested, 
the applicant shall-al-se submit to the city clerk's oftlce nine site plans and three sets of 
engineered construction plans in addition to the required application fee. At a minimum. 
the applicant shall identify the paragraphs of this article from which the applicant seeks 
a variance and the extent of the requested variance. An application for a variance may 
be processed at the same time or prior to an application for a dock permit. Notice of all 
hearing on a requested variance. including hearings before the planning and zoninu 
board and city counciL shall be provided to the applicant and anv person entitled to 
receive notice under this Chapter as provided in Section 14-11 (c)(2). 

(2) The planning and zoning board shall hear and make a recommendation to the citv 
council on anv application for variance. To recommend to the city council such variance 
from the terms ef this article, the following criteria factors shall be consideredapplied to 
the application: 

a. Average length of other docks in the surrounding 300-foot area; 

b. The reasonable use of the property by the ovvner; 

c. The effects the dock will have on navigation and safety of boaters; 

d. The overall general welfare of the neighborhood; 

e. Whether special conditions exist such that strict compliance vvith the 
provisions of this article would impose a unique and unnecessary hardship on the 
applicant; 

f. The effect of the proposed variance on abutting shoreline propetty ov,ners: 

g. Whether the granting of the variance would be contrary to the intent and 
purpose and this article; and 

h. A variance frem the ma?<im~nR length ef 65 fuel may be granted if it is 
necessary to reach a water depth suitable for boating. but in no event shall a dock be 
extended in length beyond where the water depth vvill exceed fiw feet as measured 
from the normal high v\·ater elevation. 

(3) The city council shall receive the planning and zoning board's recommendation 
and shall make a final decision on the variance application after consideration of the 
same factors described in paragraph (2), above. 

312 (e) Compliance checks. Once a permit has been issued for the construction of a OOat-dock by 
313 either the city engineer or the city counciL the permit holder and/or designated agent must 
314 submit a notice of completion to the city engineer or designee within 30 days of completion 
315 of the construction of the OOat-dock so that a compliance check may be performed by the 
316 city engineer. The compliance check shall determine if the be-at dock was built according to 
317 the permit issued by the city. 

318 (f) Building permit. Follmving the approv·al of a be-at dock application. either by the city 
319 engineer or by city counciL the applicant is also required to obtain a building permit prior to 

8 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



320 
321 ,,, 
-'"'--
323 
324 

325 (g) 

commencing construction. In the e\·ent electricity is run to the 00at dock. the proper 
electrical permit must also be obtained. All construction must be commenced.---BF and 
completed. or both \\·ithin the guidelines established by the city and anv other agency having 
jurisdiction. The applicant is responsible for all fees associated \Yith the procurement of 
necessary permits. 

Maintenance and repair. Routine maintenance and repair of docks mav be conducted on 

326 anY dock for \\·hich a dock permit was obtained from the city provided that no portion of the 

327 dock shall be expanded. enlarged. or enclosed as a result of such maintenance or repair activitv. 

328 (ghl Appro\·al of a OOat-dock permit by the City of Edgewood \\ill not eliminate the 
329 application of any other government requirements or the necessity for any other 
330 gowrnmentally required pennit(s). 

331 Sec. 14-12.- Beat EIDock regulation: intent and purpose. 

332 (a) The purpose of this article is to regulate the construction of beat-docks such that the 
333 navigation of water bodies is not unreasonably impeded. 

334 (b) An intent of the city council is to protect and enhance the city's water bodies so that the 
335 public can continue to enjoy the traditional recreational uses of those waters such as 
336 S\Vimn1ing. boating, and fishing. 

337 (c) It is further the intent of the city council to apply these regulations in a manner sensitive to 
338 the riparian and littoral rights and other property rights of the applicant, riparian and littoral 
339 rights and other property rights of the waterfront property 0\\ners, and the right of the public 
340 to the traditional uses and enjoyment of \\ater bodies in the city. 

341 Sec. 14-13.- Permits required: fees. 

342 (a) No 00at dock shall be constructed in the city without first seeking and obtaining a 00at 
343 dock permit. Applications are available in the o!Ttce of the city clerk. 

344 (b) By resolution. the city council may from time to time establish fees to be applicable to all 
345 permits. variances, appeals, or other regulatory activities authorized in this article. Payment 
346 of any application fees shall in no ''ay guarantee issuance of a dock permit. and such fee is 
34 7 nonrefundable. 

348 
349 Section 3: Conflicts. All ordinances or parts thereof in conflict here\\ith are hereby 
350 repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
351 
352 Section 4: Severability. If any section. paragraph, subsection. sentence, clause, phrase or 
353 portion of this ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
354 competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be deemed a separate. distinct. and independent 
355 provision and such holding shall not a!Tect the validity of the remaining portions hereof. 
356 
357 Section 5: Codification. The provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified as and 
358 become and be made a part of the Code of Ordinances o(/he City of Edgem)()d. The Sections of 
359 this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered to accomplish such intention and the \\Ord 

9 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



360 .. Ordinance··. or similar \vords. may be changed to .. Section:· .. Article ... or other appropriate 
361 \\ord. The Code codifier is granted liberal authority to codify the prO\ isions of this Ordinance. 
362 
363 
364 

Section 6: This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon its adoption. 

365 PASSED AND ADOPTED this~~- day of~~~--~~~· 2019. by the City 
366 Council of the City of Edge\vood. Florida. 
367 
368 
369 PASSED ON FIRST READING:~~~~~~~~~-
370 
371 PASSED ON SECOND READING:~~~~~~----
372 
373 
3 74 Richard A. llorn. Council President 
375 
376 ATTEST 
377 
378 
3 79 Be a L. Meeks 
380 City Clerk 

10 
ORDINANCE 2019-10 



TO: 

CC: 

DATE: 

RE: 

Fr-01-W +4 ~ of +4 CV/y ~/<., .. .. 

Bu.- L. fv1 uk,.Y.~ fv1fv1C.~ CPfv1.~ CBTO 
Mayor Dowless, Council Pt·esident Horn a nd Counci l Members Chotas, 
Fot·tini, Piet·ce and Rader 

Deputy City Clet·k Riffle, Police Chief Freeburg, COS Patterson and City 
Attorney Smith 

Decembet· 6, 2019 

Request for Proposal RE: Selection of Secondary Debris Management 
Services' Provider 

In the November 17, 201 9 City Council meeting, the; RFP Committee was asked to select and recommend 
a secondary company, in add ition to the primary selection, SDR, approved by Council. Below is the 
list of companies that submitted a proposal/bid, in addition to SDR: 

I. Custom Tree Care 

2. Crowder Gulf 
., 
J . Grubbs 

4. Ceres 

5. Central FL ArborCare 

6. TFR DISQUALIFIED 

In the ranking sheet prov ided with this memo, you will find that SDR, Ceres and Crowder Gul f had the top 
ran kings. As explained in the November Council meeting, the Committee placed a lot of emphasis on the 
costs of the three services that the Committee believed would be primary to the City for debris management 
servrces . 

After holding flllther di scussions regarding qualifications, pncmg and technical informati on, the 
Committee recommends Crowder Gul f for the secondary debris management service for the City. 

; M embers: Bea L. Meeks, City Clerk, Police Chief John Freeburg, Council Member Ben Pierce and Resident Tom 
Perley 

li P age 



COMPANY QUALIFICATIONS/PRICING TECHNICAL TOTAL 

Central Florida 
City Clerk Meeks 5 0 5 

ArborCare 

Ceres 27 25 52 

Crowder Gulf 27 27 52 

Custom Tree Care 26 9 35 

Grubbs 16 8 24 

SOR 27 25 52 

TFR Disqualified 0 

Council Member Pierce 
Central Florida 

ArborCare 
16 7 23 

Ceres 28 25 53 

Crowder Gulf 27 25 52 

Custom Tree Care 22 17 39 

Grubbs 23 22 45 

SOR 28 25 53 

TFR Disqualified 0 

Police Chief Freeburg 
Central Florida 

ArborCare 
19 6 25 

Ceres 27 25 52 

Crowder Gulf 28 25 53 

Custom Tree Care 22 IS 37 

Grubbs 21 19 40 

50R 29 25 54 

TFR Disqualified 0 

Resident Tom Perley 
Central Florida 

Didn't Evaluate 0 
ArborCare 

Ceres 26 23 49 

Crowder Gulf 28 24 52 

Custom Tree Care Didn't Evaluate 0 

Grubbs 16 13 29 

5DR 23 19 42 

TFR Disqualified 0 

TOTAL 

Central Florida ArborCare 53 

Ceres 206 

Crowder Gulf 209 

Custom Tree Care 111 

Grubbs 138 

50R 201 

TFR Disqualied 



Memo 
To: 

CC: 

Bea Meeks, City C lerk 

City Council 

From: Sandy Riffie, Deputy City Clerk 

November 12, 2019 Date: 

Re: Comerstone Pace- Special Exception 20 19-01 

During the November 11 , 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, the Board considered an 
application for a special exception to allow an adult daycare to be located in the Comerstone 
Pace facility clinic at Edgewood Isle Shopping Center. The facility is located in the Edgewood 
Central Disttict (ECD). 

The following information has been included for your review: 

o Special Exception application 2019-01 and two plan sheets, received 10117/2019. 

o Letter from S. Brent Spain of Thetiaque & Spain, dated October 17, 2019 

o Letter from S. Brent Spain of Theriaque & Spain, regarding operating hours, dated 
October 28, 2019 

o StaffRepmt from City Planner Ellen Hardgrove, dated October 27, 2019 

o StaffRepmt from City Engineer Allen Lane, dated October 25, 2019 

o Notice of Public Hearing dated October 31 , 201 9 

Notice of Public Heming letter was sent on October 31, 201 9 to those pro petty owners 
within 500 feet of the subject pro petty. There were 84 Notices provided by U.S. Mail. 
There have been no objections or conunents as of the d ate of this memo. 

Recommendations from Planning and Zoning are as follows : 

Board Member Santurri moved to recommend approval of Special Exception 2019-01; second 
by Board Member Trivedi. Motion approved (3/0). 

405 Bagshaw Way • Tel: 407-851 -2920 • Fax: 407-851-7361- www.edgewood-fl.gov 

P&Z Report 5156 S Orange Avenue Page 1 of 2 



OocuSign Envelope 10. 95700277 ·E49E-480 F-84CF-8C0 50 5998859 Received 10/17/2019 

City of Edgewood 

Reference: City of Edgewood Code of Ordinances, Section 134-121 REQUIRED 

FEE: $750.00 +Applicable Pass-Through Fees (Ordinance 2013-01) (Please SE-2019-01 
note this fee is non-refundable) 

PLANNINGANDZONINGMEETINGDATE: 11/11/2019 at 6:30pm 

CITY COUNCil MEETING DATE: 12/17/2019 at 6 :3 0pm 

IMPORTANT: A COMPLETE application with all required attachments and ten (10) copies must be submitted to the City 

Clerk __ days before the next Planning & Zoning meetings. No application shall be deemed accepted unless it is 

complete and paid for. 

Notarized letter of authorization from Owner MUST be submitted if application is filed by anyone other than property 

owner. 

Please type or print Complete carefully answering each question and attaching all necessary documentation and 
' 

~iooa~~~aseas ecessary. Owner's Name: 

Cornerstone Pace, LLC DC P Edgewood Isle, LP 

Address: 2445 Lane Park Rd. Address: c/oLiberty Universal Managemel, Inc. 

Tavares Fl 3277& 314 E. Anderson St.. Orlando Fl. 3280 I 

Phone Number: 352-343-1341 Phone Number: 407-426-2300 
Fax: 352-343-6115 Fax: 407-426-2322 
Email: chs-contracts@csllscrv ice.org Email: 

sbs@theriaquelaw.com ann freeland@libertyum.com 

legal Description: 
IV KIIA KN I: YS :.Ull Ullll ltl l U .\-lM ltN i tK~t· l 4 K UN N'Jl l )I tl IV jU · t I U IV KIW U t ~I KU )l / ( 1\UKIII UUUI'IIJ) N L Y 

ALONG SA ID RIW 1 2~ 75FT TO POll Til W 1 3 ~ ~6FT S 160 FT TON R•W OF II OFFNE R AV W 55FT N 81 39 FTTON liNE I.OT 4 \\" 
ALONG SAM E 49H FT TOE R \\'OF ST RD 517 (SOUTI! BOUND) N\\'I.Y ALONG SAID R•W ~ 30 FT E E860 FT SI. YTO POll 

Zoned: 
Edgewood Central District (ECD) 

location: 
5655 S. Orange A\e .. Orlando. FL 32809 

Tract Size: approximately 21.441 sq. ft . 

City section of the Zoning Code from which Special 

Exception is requested: 
~ection 134-457 

Request: Special Exception for "Neighborhood Services-Daycare. Adult" for 
PACE facilitv/clinic 

Existing on Site : Permitted: Office Administrative Services for hospice operations and PACE 
~edical facility/clinic 

Revised 6/24/2019 Page 2 of 5 



DocuSign Envelope ID: 95700277 -E49E-48DF-84CF-8CD505998859 

The applicant hereby states that the above request for Special Exception does not violate any deed restrictions on the 
property. Application must be sh•ned bv the legal owner, not acent, unless copy of po.ver of attorney is attached. 

~uS~gnldliy: . 

Applicant's Signature Date: 10/17/2019 
Applicant's Printed Name coo cornerstone P ~~e: LLC 

Owner's Signature 
10/16/2019 

--------'--
Owner's Printed Name 

Forwarded To: 

Notes: 

- ------'---·---------- - - · --- ---- - -----------
Plu~e submit your completed application to City Hall via Pmail to or to 

,. , . ·, , v1a facsimile to 1107·851·7361, or hand deliver to City Hall located at ®5 Bagshaw Way. For 
additional quc~tions, please contact City Hall at 1107-BSl-2920. 

ReVISed 6j2.J/Z019 Poge 3 of S 



I 
:: ' ' 
~; 

;j 

il '" ffi: I ~, l i 
~~ j !~ id . ~H~ ~. j, 

r; .2. 

~~ 
:;;~ li 
" l' ~ ~ t ]~ 

lU H 
H !H " l!' H 
Oi 

' l " '. ~ n 
u~ ~~ n H! 
Hi ~~ no n H~ 
~![ li u, !1 iH H 

~ 
' li 

l ~ t 
n r' d ~ 

' ~ 
~i . 

hHJ 
" ~. HH 
~~ 

~0-TI 
--0--~ 
Q--0 
-0-
Q--0 

~;if 

IH~~~ !j 

I! , 11111!1~ 
fh Ii ! ' j-

i 

l!llil 

~'~ n: 
H~ H 

Ill ' m n ' Hi l 
' 

~I 
jL 

tU i iH j 

II! 
i 'h i 

lllll! 
!·· j 

~n ' i l ol. I i u~ ' gH. 
' H~ ! ,,, 

Ill 
~! 0 

! ; ' h! l lH ! ~H 
i ~HiH HI ~ u: 

<ii~ ' 

j! 

! 
I 

IJ Jil 
111 

i 
1 '' HH 
UH 

lill 
'·'" 

tlll 

I 
i 
I 
J 

I 
,I 

I 

. . 
0 ' 

'• . 
' 0 

+-+''+''1-t~~f~'F'f):t_ ~ )\ 

i 
i>l ~ i>l 
~ ~ ~ '0. 

~~~~ 

l i 



'i 

.[ 

,j. 
I. 

GEM STREET 

'; ! ~ ~-~ ~'*~~~lj~~~~~j~f' 
__ L/1;{ .. ~-.-l.<l•!········!"_-lJ~,~."'~ ,. LC"~····-. I 

:~~~~Ti~~e~~~;·;;"···~, 
•> •lwt~"'"""""'"''""'"""''" 

"'"""""""""""""'"TO"""""'""' 
", .. ""'""""""'"'"'"""''"'""'"'n'""' 

,.. """"'"'''"'"'""''""'""""''"""'~''"' .,,,..,.,.,.,"'"'"""""""""""'" .. """"'""''"'""'"'""""''"'"'"..,"'~'""'"'"'"'"'""""' 

111 ;v1r,j: .. "'li'~~~~,.fr=:r\~:~r·r~ '(!j~}"tj]r8t:{~i 1 .;:. · J.) ~ 1 \, .. !fi, r~.~ ,,,...,"""""''"'~""" 
~'l<TIOO/l..,""""'lllOIDPJJ.HoO 

."""""~""'""""""'""'"'""''""10"""'~"''"""""" 
"""'"'""""''""""'~'""'""'-.,. 

•""""""''~"""''""""""""''"'"'""""""""' "~ ""''"'"'"w''""" I I I , i , I ""-

EB 
PARTIAL ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN 

'"'""'''"" I ::;.~- \ r-r::;,::, 

SITE PLAN KEYNOTES 

TAG C!:::_) EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES 

11 """''"''""""""''"""""""''"''· '"'"''"'"-""'-"'""""'"""'""'' 
""' .... '"'""'"'""' .. """'"""" 
<o ""'""'""'""'""'"""'~"'"·'""'"~t•.N.J«<S 

""'"""'"'""""""""'"""' (~) -~:,:':"" _ ~~:,'~ :: ::::::::::.,,tl'"' 
(<-!) ,. ot~M""""""""'""""" 

1 

II! II fiJI I I' L.L I ITJD· ' .· '""""""'""-"""""'""'" 
(«) ::___ - Ht] \ )I I I I ,,,..,, __ ,.""""""""""'~"""'-

"m r Jt:~·-;;-'"~-l'+li'"rtfl ! 1· ::j;;-JH; .. , <1 :: :::::::::::::::::::::·-

=l=~~~;:::;:::::;:::;::':~j-~\~1~' - - - ···=" -~1 """'~"'"'-'""-""-
,_____ c;~ --~~~~,-\r (E.~ - ----::,:,...~~ ...... -------: ~:;;;:=:::=:::~;_::,:;~:::.:::~:' 

.~E~!';t:J~~.~~1.!Y~E 

.,._, ... ,.,, 

---·-··~··~·"K :~·._...-·~~"-

~~-;t' 
-~ '~"' 1--,.=·--· .. -· ... -- ~ 

""""""'""' '"::':~.~~·""'-"""""''"'"'""'"""·"~""""'"'"""''-"' ,..,~....,_,_,.,, ... 

2 PARTIAL REAR ELEVATION EXTERIOR ELEVATION KEYNOTES 

"'""' 
Comcrstone Ko~pjca 'I ~/ -

__ c~,,J 
~;.~"' __./ ,,:.~ 

\f!~ 
L 

~ DROP-OFF CANOPY ROOF PLAN 

>::-~~ 

',~/ 
.. I .. 

~· 
,,~ 

6 I PATIO CANOPY ROOF PLAN 

"""' 

§:J
i 

-
. - . 

/""'-'"'' 

n /= 
' . 

' '•- m ... --""'"'" 

-- "'"' 
. 

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN, 
CANOPY PLANS & 
ELEVATIONS 

AS001 
7 DROP OFF CANOPY REFELCTEO CEILING PLA 8 PATIO REFLECTED CEILING PLAN .,_. -"" 

, .. ··~ , •.. ,... -- ~"""""~' .... ,.~,. 
n 



OocuSign Envelope 10: 95700277 -E49E-480F-84CF-8C0505998859 

SPECIAL EXCEPTION APPLICATION 

1. Provide the legal description (include street address). 5655 S. Orange Ave., Orlando FL 32809 

W R HARNEYS SUB C/881/2 COMM CENTER SEC 24 RUN N 921.5 1 FT \\'30FT TOW R/W OF ST RD 527 (NORTH 
BOUND) NLY ALONG SA ID R/W 124.75 FT TO POB TH W 134.46 FT S 160FT TON R/W OF HOFFNE R 
AV \V 55FT N 81.39 FT TON li NE LOT4 W ALONG SAME 494 .9 FTTOE RI\V OF ST RD 527 (SOUTH BOUND) NWL Y 
ALONG SAID R/W 430 FT E E 860FT SLY TO POB 

2. If you are not the owner of the subject property, provide written acknowledgement and authorization from 

property owner that they do not object to the use requested in the Special Exceptio n Application, and give their 

authorization for the use if approved. 

See attached notarized letter from the owner, DCP Edgewood Isle, LP 

3. SURROUNDING ZONING DESIGNATIONS: 

DIRECTION ZONING 

NORTH ECD 
SOUTH Commercial - C-1 
EAST ECD 

WEST Commercial - C-3 

4. Describe the proposed use you; including conditions on the use, hours of operation, requ ired parking and loading 

spaces, and number of employees. If proposed use is a training/vocational school, provide the number of anticipated 

students/clients. See attached Transmittal Letter. 

5. If applicable, please provide: See Attached Site Plan 

Dimensions of the property (see attached example) 

Existing and proposed location of structure(s) on the property 

Vehicu lar access ways, driveways, circulation areas (include widths) 

Off-street parking and loading areas 

Refuse and service areas 

Required setbacks; landscape or buffer areas; and other open spaces 

Revised 6/24/2019 Page 4 of 5 



VIA HAND DELIVERY 

Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 
City of Edgewood 
405 Lan1e A venue 
Edgewood, Florida 32809 

October 17, 2019 

RrtE:cilvE;RE 
R§ift~{v'rfriot9 

OCT 1 7 ~R~EWooo 
CITY OF ECGfl. ~'CCD 

Re: Cornerstone Hospice/PACE- Special Exception Application 

Dear Ms. Riffle: 

Our finn represents Cornerstone Health Services ("Cornerstone"), who presently operates 
the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility at 5655 S. Orange Avenue in Edgewood, Florida 
("Property"). Enclosed for the City's review and approval is an "Application for Special Exception" 
related to the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility, together with the necessary support 
documentation and a check payable to the City of Edgewood for the applicable filing fees. 

Cornerstone previously submitted an Application for Use Permit and received the City's 
approval for its facility on the Property (i.e., "Administrative Office for Hospice & MedicaiD facility 
providing services and care for the elderly") on September 6, 2016. Thereafter, Cornerstone filed 
an Application for Building/Land Use Permit for its "Hospice staff and PACE center- Drop off only 
(No overnight)," which Orange County permitting subsequently approved. 

The enclosed Application for Special Exception pertains to the ftnal bill ld-out of the existing 
Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility, which, as depicted on the enclosed Site Plan 
documents, reworks portions of the clinical side and completes the senior activity/multi-purpose 
space of the building. This project recently received legislative funding and will be operated in 
conjunction with the existing Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility. 

Cornerstone respectfully submits that the Cornerstone HospicefPACE medical facility, 
including the proposed fmal build-out for the clinical side and ancillary services for senior activities, 
constitutes a "medical office/clinic" pursuant to Section 134-01 of the City's Code, as opposed to 
an "adult day care," which is not a defined term in the City's Code. Medical offices/clinics are a 
"permitted" use within the Edgewood Central District zoning category, whereas a standalone adult 
day care requires a "special exception." Thus, Cornerstone maintains that the Comcrstone 
Hospice/PACE medical facility, including the final build-out thereof, constitutes a permitted use on 

TALLAHASSEE 

433 NORTH MAG:-iOLIA DRIV~; 
TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32308 

(850) 224-7332 
F...x: (850) 224 -7662 

WJ.YDERMERE 

9100 Co!\ROY WrNo::RMER E RoAD, SurrE 200 
W!NDERY.ERE, F LORIDA 34786 

(407) 258-3733 
F...x: (407) 264-6132 

www. theriaquelaw.com 



Sandy Riftlc, Deputy City Clerk 
City of Edgewood 
October 17, 2019 
Page2 

the Prope11y and does not need a special exception. Nevertheless, in an abundance of caution and 
to alleviate any issues regarding Cornerstone's operations, Cornerstone submits the enclosed 
Application for Special Exception for formal approval of an "adult day care" to operate within and 
as part of the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility. 

PACE, or Program of All-inclusive Care for the Elderly, is a State and Federally funded 
program. PACE is an innovative model of health care that provides a range of integrated 
preventative, acute care, and long-term care services to manage the complex medical, functional, and 
social needs of the elderly. PACE was created to provide participants, tinnily, care givers, and 
professional health care providers the flexibility to meet a person's health care needs while 
continuing to live safely in the conununity. The purpose of the PACE program is to provide 
comprehensive health care services that arc designed to: (I) enhance the quality oflife and autonomy 
for older adults; (2) maximize dignity of and respect for older adults; (3) enable older adults to live 
in their homes and in the community as long as medically and socially feasible; and (4) preserve and 
support the older adult's family unit. 

Participants in the PACE program must be: (I) age 55 or older; (2) reside in the PACE 
organization's service area (i.e., Edgewood and the surrounding communi ties): and (3) be certified 
as eligible for nursing home care by their state and be able to live safely in a community setting at 
the time of emollment. Eligible beneficiaries who choose to email in PACE agree to forgo their 
usual sources of care and receive all their services through the PACE organization. 

PACE provides participants all the care and services covered by Medicare and Medicaid, as 
authorized by the interdisciplinary team ("IDT'), which is comprised of physicians, nurses, therapists 
and other licensed clinicians, as well as additional medically-necessary care and services not covered 
by Medicare and Medicaid. The lOT assesses the participant's needs and develops a comprehensive 
care plan that meets the needs of the pmiicipant across all care settings on a 24-hour basis, each day 
ofthe year. 

Medical and social services are provided by PACE primarily in an adult health care center. 
Such services include: (I) primary medical care; (2) nursing services: (3) physical therapy; (4) 
occupational and speech therapy; (5) recreational therapy; (6) social work counseling; (7) laboratory 
and X-ray services; (8) Medicare Pan D prescriptions; (9) dental care; (10) meals and nutritional 
counseling; and (II) social interaction, music, art, and spiritual activities, and transportation. Such 
services are supplemented by in-home and referral services as needed. Hospital, nursing home, 
home health, and other specialized services arc generally fumished under contract with community 
providers. In most cases, the comprehensive PACE service package pennits participants to continue 
living at home rather than being admitted to a nursing home facility. 



Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 
City of Edgewood 
October 17,2019 
Page3 

The proposed hours of operation for the "adult day care'' within the Cornerstone 
l!ospicc!PACE medical facility are 8:00a.m. to 5:00p.m. daily. The Cornerstone Hospice/PACE 
medical facility, including the "adult day care," is not an ovcmight facility. 

The "adult day care" within the Corne"tone Hospice/PACE medical facility \\ill have 
approximately five (5) to ten (l 0) employees. The "adttlt day care" will be located withln a portion 
of a 70,000+/- square foot shopping center with sufficient, existing parking for the proposed use. 
The transportation drop-offlloading area, along with employee parking, will be located in the rear 
of the Property. 

Cornerstone appreciates the City StatTs assistance and support of the enclosed Application 
for Special Exception and requests that this matter be placed on the Agenda for the Edgewood 
Zoning Board's ::-.lovembcr meeting. Please do not hesitate to contact me or Donna Loyko at 
Cornerstone ( dloyko@cshospice.eom/407-448-8368), if you have any questions or need additional 
infom1ation. 

Enclosures 

cc: Cornerstone Health Services 

Sincerely, 

./"'' "' 
%~--v---

s. Brent Spain (~ 



VIA ELECTRONIC MAIL 

Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 
City ofEdgewood 
405 Larue A venue 
Edgewood, Florida 32809 

R EPLY T o: W INDERMERE 

October 28, 2019 

Re: Cornerstone Hospice/PACE - Special Exception Application 

Dear Ms. Riffle: 

As you are aware, our firm represents Cornerstone Health Services ("Cornerstone") with 
regard to its pending Special Exception Application for the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical 
facility at 5655 S. Orange Avenue in Edgewood, Florida ("Property"). Pursuant to discussions with 
the City's Planner, this letter is being submitted to clarify the proposed hours of operation for the 
"adult day care" within the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility. 

The normal operating hours of the "adult day care" will be 8:00a.m. to 5:00p.m. daily, with 
early drop-off beginning at 7:00 a.m. and late pick-up extending until 6 :30 p.m. As stated in 
Cornerstone's Special Exception Application, the Cornerstone Hospice/PACE medical facility, 
including the "adult day care," is not an overnight facility. 

We appreciate the City Staff's assistance and support of Cornerstone's Special Exception 
Application. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need additional 
infonnation. 

cc: Cornerstone Health Services 

TALLAHASSEE 

433 NORTH MAGNOLI A DRIVE 

T ALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32308 
(8 50) 224-7332 

FAX: (850) 224-7 662 

S. Brent Spain 

WINDERMERE 

9 100 CONROY W INDERMERE ROAD, S UITE 200 
WINDERMER E, F LORIDA 34786 

(407) 258-3 733 
FAX: (407) 264-6132 

www. theriaquelaw.com 



405 Bagshaw Lane- Edgewood, Florida 32809-3406 

(407) 851-2920 

To: Planning and Zoning Board Members 
XC: Sandy Riffle , Deputy City Clerk 

Ms. Bea Meeks, City Clerk 
Drew Smith, City Attorney 
David Mahler, City Engineering Consultant 

From: Ellen Hardgrove, AICP, City Planning Consultant 
Date: October 27, 2019 
Re: Special Exception Application Cornerstone Hospice/PACE 

Introduction 
Property Owner: DCP Edgewood Isle, LP 

Request: Special Exception in the ECD zoning district to allow an "adult 
day care" in the leased space at the Edgewood Isle Shopping 
Center 

Leased space: 21,441 square feet at 5655 S. Orange Avenue 

Location: North side Hoffner Avenue, between Hansel and Orange 
Avenue, also fronts on Gem Street 

Existing on-site: Leased space currently contains administrative offices for 
Cornerstone Health Service 



Location Map 

0 
,,,.. 

Q 

Surrounding uses: North - Select Medical/vacant land 
South - Miscellaneous commercial 
West - Commercial/Industrial uses 
East - Commercial uses 

Surrounding Zoning: North - ECD 
South - ECD and C1 and C3 in County 
West - C3 and Industrial in County 
East - ECD 

Cornerstone Adult Day Care Special £rception Application Re1·ie11' 
Page 2 af4 

October 27, 2019 



Proposal Description 
The proposal is for an adult day care with operating hours of 7:00 am to 6:30 pm, 
no overnight stays. Users of the facility must be 1) age 55 or older and 2) be 
certified as eligible for nursing home care by the State of Florida. 

Consideration for approval by Planning and Zoning Board 
According to Section 134-457(c), the Planning and Zoning Board is to consider 
the following when considering approval of this proposal: 

• Character of the neighborhood in which the proposed use is to be located, 
• Its effect on the value of surrounding lands, and 
• The area of the site as it relates to the required open space and off-street 

parking facilities. 

The Code allows for the granting of special exceptions with conditions and 
safeguards as are appropriate to eliminate potential adverse impacts and to 
ensure cause health, safety, and/or general welfare of employees and patrons to 
the day care. Other jurisdictions considering approval of adult day cares have 
attached conditions including hours of operation, limiting the number and types of 
clients (e.g., no alcohol or substance abuse clients), and licensing proof. 

Considerations 
Effect on the character of the neighborhood 
The proposal is to remodel the existing Cornerstone Health Service 
administrative offices in the Edgewood Isle shopping center to accommodate an 
adult day care. This use has been deemed consistent and compatible with the 
goals of the ECD; such a facility is a valuable asset to a community and provides 
a progressive option for aging in place versus an institutionalized selling. 

A shopping center, particularly one served by public sewer and water, provides a 
convenient location for such a use and would not create land use compatibility 
issues. The existing and potential uses of the shopping center would create more 
of an issue for the day care use than vice-versa. Furthermore, the use is 
compatible with the medical use to the north. 

From the submitted information with the application, the day care will be oriented 
to both the north and south sides of the leased space. The south entrance will 
be via the shopping center parking lot. The north entrance is via Gem Street, a 
two lane, substandard road, without sidewalks. A drive-up/drop-off lane is 
proposed to be constructed on the north face of the building to facilitate 
passenger drop-off away from the shopping center general traffic. 

As a note, some issues have been identified related to the operation of drop-off 
lane as well as the parking on the north side of the building, such as adequacy of 
parking for disabled patrons at both entrances, lack of sidewalks along Gem 
Street, width of the drop-off lane relative to emergency vehicles, and potential 
vehicle queuing onto Gem Street. These issues will be addressed during site 
plan review. 

C ·ornerstone Adult /Jay Care 5pecial Erception .1pplication Rerieu' 
Page j of4 

October 27. 2019 



Effect on Surrounding Land Value 
The use should not have negative impacts on the surrounding land values. 
Instead, it may positively affect the land values with the use seen as a convenient 
option for caring for Edgewood residents' aging parents/spouses. 

Parking availability 
The proposed use would not generate more than other uses that could potentially 
occupy the space by right (vs. special exception approval). The use anticipates a 
maximum of ten employees. 

As stated above there is a concern related to the lack of handicap accessible 
parking for the north entrance and lack of sidewalks along Gem Street. The 
applicant can address this at the public hearing and during site plan review. 

Conclusion and Recommendation 
Unless additional information is presented at the public hearing that reveals new 
information not considered as part of the staff review, staff finds the requested 
Special Exception for an "adult day care" in the subject leased space consistent 
with the character of the neighborhood, will not have a negative effect on the 
value of surrounding lands, and will not increase off-street parking demand 
relative to other uses that are allowed by right (vs. special exception approval). 

ESH 

Cornerstone .-ldult Dc{l' Care Special Exception .1pplication Rerieu· 
Page 4 (~( 4 

October ] 7. ]() 19 



October 25, 2019 

Sandy Repp 
Administrative Assistant 
City of Edgewood 
405 Larue Avenue 
Edgewood, FL 32809-3406 

RE: 5655 S Orange Ave- Cornerstone Hospice - new plan review 
CPH Project number E7601 

Hi Sandy, 

1117 East Robinson St. 
Orlando, FL 32801 

Phone: 407.425.0452 
Fax: 407.648.1036 

We are in receipt of the civil and architectural plans, signed and sealed on August 30, 2019, for 
the above listed project. 

We performed a general review of the plans to verify the expected use of the new drop off area 
on the north side of the building. We also contacted the architect, Mr. Daniel Laggan, Schenkel
Shultz, to discuss the plans. 

The drive area on the rear of the building is intended for ambulatory access and periodic drop 
off of handicap patrons. The rear area is not intended to be the main entrance to the building . 
The area on the south side of the building is the main entrance. Therefore , there will be no 
handicap parking on the south side of the building. In addition, the slope of the existing parking 
area well exceeds the maximum slope for handicap parking and would have to be demolished 
and reconstructed for handicap parking . 

Based on the description from the Architects, our main concern is the height of the canopy over 
the new drive loop. The architect drawings show the height at 12 feet. We expect Orange 
County fire will require the minimum height to be 13.5 feet. We discussed this with the 
Architect. 

Sincerely, 
CPH, Inc. 

dJI-_C~CJ. 
Allen C. Lane, Jr. , P.E. 
Project Engineer 

CC: David Mahler, P.E., CPH 
File 

J:\E7601\Civii\Documents\City Plans-Application Review\1-completed projects\5655 Edgewood Isle Shopping Cntr
Cornerstone\letters\5655 Cornerstone Hospice It rto City 1 0-25-19.docx 

- - ,_ - - - -



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that at its Planning & Zoning meeting on Monday, November 11, 

2019 the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Edgewood, will consider the following 
Special Exception request for the property located at 5655 South Orange Avenue in Edgewood 
Central District (ECD) zoning district (City of Edgewood City Code of Ordinances, Reference Section 
134-457Cb) [as listed in Ordinance 2018-09]). 

Special Exception 2019-01 - This is a request for a Special Exception for an adult daycare to 
be located in the Cornerstone Pace facility clinic at Edgewood Isle Shopping Center. 

The application was submitted by Cornerstone Pace, LLC. The meeting will be held in the 
Council Chambers of City Hall, 405 Bagshaw Way, Edgewood, Florida beginning at 6:30 p.m. 
or as soon thereafter as the matter may be heard. The Planning and Zoning Board's 
recommendation "'~II be forwarded to City Council on Tuesday, December 17, 2019 at 6 :30 _p.m. 
for final action. 

The subject property for variance is legally described as w R HARNEYS SUB C/881/ 2 COMM CENTER SEC 
24 RUN N 921.51 FT W 30 FT TO W R/W OF ST RD 527 (NORTH BOU ND) NLY ALONG SAID R/W 124.75 FT TO POB TH 
W 134.46 FT S 160FT TO N R/W OF HOFFNER AV W 55 FT N 81.39 FT TO N LI NE LOT 4 W ALONG SAME 494.9 FT TO 
E R/W OF ST RD 527 (SOUTH BOU ND) NWLY ALONG SAID R/W 430 FT E E 860FT SLY TO POB 

s el eet s pecialty 
Ho$1)1td
Or411~ 1nc. 

Hta·Or1andoSs 
Hospilel lLC 

,... --- ~~ ·~ 

Hc4ffl€f Ave 
Rees 

Davldl 

Interested parties may attend this meeting and be heard with respect to this 
variance application. In addition, the application(s) may be inspected by the 
public at the City Clerk's Office, 405 Bagshaw Way, Edgewood, Florida. 

405 Bagshaw Way • Tel: 407-851-2920 • Fax: 407-85 1-7361 • www .edgewood-fl.gov 



You may reach City Hall at 407-851-2920; City Hall is open Monday - Thursday 
8 a.m. to 4 p.m. and Friday 8 a.m. to noon. Should you have any ues tions or 
concet·ns please do not hesitate to come to City Hall to revie·w the file. 
This matter is subject to quasi-judicial rules of procedure. Interested parties should limit contact 
\dth the Planning and Zoning Board and City Council on this topic to properly noti ced hea rings 
or to \\Titten communication to the City Clerk's Office. 

Any person aggrieved by a recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board may file a notice 
of appeal to the City Council within seven days after such recommendation is filed with the city 
clerk. 

The City of Edgewood desires to accommodate persons with disabilities . Accordingly, any 
physically handicapped person, pursuant to Chapter 286.26, Florida Statutes, should, at least 
48 hours prior to the meeting, submit a written request that the physically handicapped person 
desires t o attend the meeting to the City Clerk's Office. 

This public hearing may be continued to a future date or dates. Any interested party is advised 
that the date, time, and place of any continuation shall be announced during the public hearing 
and that no further notices regarding this matter will be published. 

Should you desire additional information, regarding this application, please feel free to contact 
Edgewood City Hall at 407-851-2920, or e-mail at sriffie@edgewood-fl.gov. 

AM?~ 
Sandyiffle 
Depu ty City Clerk 
Dated : October 31, 2019 

You mau either mail in uow· comments and concerns on the space p1·ovided 
below o1· submit directly to Ciht II all. Please see above ow· how·s of operation. 
·we tlzank you for yow• participation. 

405 Bagshaw Way • Tel: 407-85 1-2920 • Fax: 407-851-7361• www.edgewood-fl.gov 



Memo 
To: 

CC: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

Bea Meeks, City Clerk 

City Council 

Sandy Riffle, Deputy City Clerk 

December 9, 2019 

Gatlin Hall Brewery - Commercial Review 

Dllling the December 9, 2019 Planning and Zoning Board meeting, the Board considered an 
application for a brewery to be located at Ft. Gatlin Shopping Center at 4721 S. Orange Avenue. 
The business would be located in the Edgewood Central District (ECD). 

Th e following information has been included for your review: 

Commercia l review for Gatlin Hall Brewery. 
• Orange CoLmty Application 
• Letter from W. Ronald Mcilveen, P.E. received 12/03/20 19. 
• Staff Report fi'om City Engineer Allen Lane, dated December 2, 2019 
• Plan sheets received 12/03/20 19 

Recommendations from Planning and Zoning are as follows: 

Board Member Sauturri moved to recommend approval oftlte plaus; second by Board Member 
Kreidt Motion approved (3/0). Board Member recused himself due a voting conflict. 

405 Bagshaw Way • Tel: 407-851-2920 • Fax: 407-851-7361e www.edgewood-fl.gov 

P&Z Report 5156 S Orange Avenue Page 1 of 2 



0~~ C l rl 
lifl\ f.R:-\ ) IE.'\T 

Orange County Division of B uildi ng Safety 
20 1 South Rosalind AvenuP. 

Reply To: Post OF-ice Box 2667 · Orlando. Florida 32~2-2687 
Phone: 407-836-5550 
www.odl ncVb-Jild1ng 

_1_1_,__§_t~ 
Oa<o 

A PPLICATION FOR BUILDING/LAND USE PERMIT* 
• Nl App6ca5ons Must Comply with Concurrency Re~u-.,r.en~ 

't/A.RNING TO OWNER: "YOUR FAILURE TO RECORD A NOTICE OF COMMENCE.'AENT MAY RESULT IN YOUR 
PAYING T\'IJCE FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO YOUR PROPERTY. A NOTICE Oi' COMfdENCEf.IENT MUST BE 
R<:CORDED AND POSTED ON THE JOB SITE BEFORE THE FIRS T INSPECTION. IF YOU INTEND TO OBTAW 
FINANCING, CONSULT WITH YOUR LENDER OR AN ATTORNEY BEFORE RECORDING YOUR NOTICE OF 
COMMENCEMENT." 

PLEASE PRIN'ic 
The undersigned hereby applies for a permit to make building improvements as indic;;ted b;to·.v on property 

Projed~-1-e;;:.;. 4721 S. Oranae Ave. 
(IAJst match acdress en plans) 

Suite/Unit#: Bldg#: C1l}• Orlando Zi:t Co~ 32806 

Subcivision Name: _______________________ _ 

Perce! ID Number: Section 12 Townsh'p 23 Range 29 Subdivision 73 12 Btoc!t 0 Lot 179 
( 15 Digit Parcel tO Numt;er & Legal Descripticn m~'51 te on ~lans;- --· -- --

C\ .. ':'lertt='..tr~~ MartniHolden. LLC PhoneN:J -~ 608- 2306 

O.r.1er ,.&,dch;s:> 5555 S. K irkman Rd .• Ste. 201 City W inter G arde ~<. £!:.. Ztp COO< 34787 

Tmant Name: Gatlin Hall Brewery Phone No:(_! __ . ___ _ 

Nature of Business: .:::B:.:.r.:::e.!:w:.::e:.:.rv_,_ ____________________________ _ 

Architect Name S a ndbar Architecture License No. AR97788 Phore No .: ( 727 )308 • 1773 

Cr1 il Engineer Name --------- -License No.: ______ Pncne No : L___) __ -__ _ 

NatJre ot ~=1 'mo·o:emEnts: Combine 5 Retail Soaces Into Brewery 

Demolition Permit # ---------

PROPERTY ON ~SEWER or OsEPTJC 

S1te Work Permit#. ·- - - - .. ----------- - · ---

P'titn'ltit val~"ion are~ter th~n $2500 reautres a notariJ!ed Paoe 2. and Notice at C4:lmme1'\~tnt orior to the first in.s oPet:on 

Is Notice of Commencement Recorded? 18] Yes O No 

II !here were comments on lhis project, how would you like Jo rece•ve them? 

0 Pick them up IBJE-Mai l (Customer shall access Web Page) 

Is proposed w orll in response loa Nobce of Code Violation wriUen by an Orange Coorty in3pector1 [)Yes § So 

b p1oposed '1'1'01'1< in re~ponse to an unsafe abatement notic£? O Y EiS IE}No 

Has project had 1 pre-rav!aw?(]Yas ~o If Yes. Commercial Pians Exam.ner(s)' _______ _ 

Is building lire sprlnklered?Qt'es @lo 

Ost:ached Gara91=1 []r'n ~o V1luation for Ot1;rd1~ Gar•l• Only:'---- --

Required wOI'II: ~Plumbing ®:tec\OCal @.techanocal [):Ju 0 Roofing 0None 

Alt~tiont OA!y: 

Is this a new tenant? IBJYes [Jlo If yes, state previous use: '-'R._.e ... ta'"j"-I,.S'l'p"'a""ce..,s,__ _________ _ 

Intended use of space: ~£X!£l..J----------------------------
List use of adjoining tenant space{s): S1de: ,_N'-'1-"'A'--- -----Above: _,_N_,f_,_A,__ ____ _ 

Rear: N fA Side: N/A Below: _,_N.!!.fA"'------

Tota! J ob Val uation: $ 248,213.00 

I hereby m•>• Appic:aUC<\ fe< Permit as O<J if,.d abovo. and~ same s granl<d I asre•lo con/0171\ 1o •~ ().,;s;tr> d Ewl<ling Sa/!ty Re~tlons and 
Cotmty Ora~nar.ces r1!9'JiaUng .a me and in accordance v.llh plans SI.Om•lled. Tl-.e i$suat>te ollh;s ~enrl !!c"' r« srant penn;ss:cn to vola!e any 
appriCable Orange CO<Jnty ar~or State ol Flo<ida e« .. and/or or<for.ar.ces l ~ere by cer.i'y llvlilhe at:oo.. s '<.~ z>d ccr!d to lhe be!l or my 
~CUI~~ 

PlEASE PRINT: (Check one) Owner: 0 Contractor: [Kl 
Name or Liceme H J'd~;.'Agent · .!:A~a!!.ro~n!!.!.H~o!l:p!!:e'---------------

Contractor License Number (if applicable):~C~G:!:C>!-1.!.:5:!..1~9,:.:,0!.::4~1----------

Contact Pnorte Null"ote;: ( 407 ) 920 - 8550 E-!\laij Address,.,:.:::.a!.!.ho"'p""e,.,@=a!.!.m"-'h:::;i!l,_,c'-".co~--------

f'.ulhorized Stgnatu•e: - - - - --------- ---------

---,.-.a masl nformacion en espai\01,-por favor llame al Departamento d• Building S-ai!!Jat numerc 407-836·5550. 

43-15 (?.ev 01118) Page t of 2 

'!) 
0 

~ 
z c 

~ 

---------------------

5 



Permit Application Information . Page Two 

o • • ,,-s •;J..,~ Martni Holden. LLC 

oh-~r ~ l <Xt ·; ; 555Q.~I5.irkma.nB.Q. .• ~§......~_01 

Fee S1mple Titlehold~r'> N2m: (If ether ll1an owner's) . __ . ---- ---- -- - --
Fee S.mJ:Ie Titleholder's Address (II otr.er tnan c,·,ner's) ___ ______________ _ ____ _ 

~"• Orlando St•t~ ,__F=,l ___________ u,-.c~ __ _,3::.2:.::8'-'-1""9 __ 

~!fa~tor's N-9me AMH Construction Inc. 

""· ·~~or s M~I<;~_,3"'0'-S=. -'-l v""e,_·,_~_,L"-n"-.-----------------------------
:s:a~ FL __ __ ___ , ______ - - ·- . ___ eJp Oodc 3281 1 

Job Name Gatlin Halljlrewecv Reno"'v""a"'ti"'on'-'---- ___ ----------

Jcb Address 4721 S. Orange Ave. __ _ - ------ - - --- -- SLJIT~:t.;NIT -----

Oty Orlando __ __ state - -- ·-· ___________ Zip Co,e __ __-:3~2-"-80::::6"----

B<lnding Company Na.'T'e ----------------------------------

Bondir.g Company Address--- - - - --- ------------

City ---------- ____________ State--- ---- _____ Zip Code ___ ____ _ 

"'~'"'"cl~n:;""'c' s N"a• ~<e Sand,b.,a..,r-'At'-"-'c"':h-"i,le,.;c,..,l""u""re,_ _______________________ _ 

AtcrJ:ec!JEng.neer's Address 1162 Rolling Oaks Ave. Taroon Sorinos FL 34689 

~Jortgage Lender's Name ___ _ --------------- .. .. 

~ortgageLeodefsAcc~ss ________________________________ _ 

~ 
~ 
z 
3 
"' 0 ,-
1 
I 

Ajlpfica~on is hereby made to obta n a permit to co tl'le war'~ and lnstallatons as ~ndica:ac 1 ceMy L'lat no \'lOll< or 1nS!clla~on has 
convnenced pr'o<lr to the lssuanc~ ol a permil and ihal aii work will be performed to meet the stao'>dar:l; ol a! laws regulating conslrl.'<:tion in 
this jurisdiction I understand tnat a separate perm•1 rr.~ st be secured lor ELECTRICAL PLL'I'.StNG, GAS. MECHANICAL, ROOFING, 
SIGNS, POOLS. ETC. 

OWNER'S AFFIDAVIT: I certi~; rr.at all the foregoing rnfcrmetion IS accurate and 1/!at all wor• ,,;1 ~done in compl1ance wrth an applicable 
laws reguleti!lg coMttucbon and zoning _ 

WARNING TO OWNER: Your fanure to record a Notice ot Commencement may result in your paying twice 
fo r improvements to your property. A Notice of Commencement must be recorded and posted on the job site 
b€fore the first inspection. If you intend to obtain financing, consult with your erder or an attorney before 
recording your Notice of Commencement. 

_ __________ ., ~tf'li(rc:atcn rr< tMO 

6d nctlak! an oalll 

"0 
0 

:X: 
01 
c:: 
c:: 
0 

N 
"0 
0 
0 
;: 
Cl) 

01 
"0 w 
'+-
0 

£ 
(..) 

Notary as to OWner ___ ..<:.J~--------

dl<l no1 falte an 03~'1. ~ 

Notary as to Contractc;~.A.. ~-'-J;V"'_~ ~ 
Commrssion No (:.-b-1.. ?>00 ~q Comm,sslcn No. __ __,ud.\;=-~S.L.2....._~7-g"-'-\ _,"2,___ __ _ 

Stale cr Fl. County of --.,..~.-!.<:.:..f'.=C\;..<1.:,~/P'"-----::c--
My Cemmissien • 'P;res· -..Ltf-r-.:..f_•_i~""t.,....~•--"?""'.O...c...r~.c..3"'---
(SEAL) 

Slateoi FL C<l"n~t ol~ 1"\1 ~-=:-.,...---
My Commlssicn expves JlLl (t • % ').. L 
(SEAL) 

Para mas informacion en upaiiol, por Cavor flame al Oepartomanto de Build'"'l S.fttyal nlim11o 407-836-5550. 

0·75 (Ri!V01/13} Page 2 or 2 

) 
.J 
J 
0 
0 
3 
Cl) 
OJ 

"'0 
w ..... 
0 
Z' u 

6 



nee . ,v~;o 

l,c.L: 0 3 20\9 

cn;'l;,9J,£9J3EWOOD 

@ SAN DBA _~ 

\VIs. Sandy Riffle 
Deputy Ctty Clerx 
City of Edgewood 
405 L arue Avenue 
Edgewood, FL 32809-3406 

Re: 4721 S Orange Avenue 
Gatlin Hall Plans Review 
CPH Project Number E7601 
Commission 19-24 

Dear Ms. Riffle 

Thar'lk you for taking the time to perform the building plan review. Please accept this letter as a supplement 
to the revised drawings, with changes clouded (if any), responding to your review comments dated from 
No,;e mber 15, 2019. 

In ord er to facilita te ease of reference your comments are indicated by the bold italics and our responses 
are it alicized immediately fo llowing your comment. 

CPH Review 

1. Sheet $2.1 - This plan includes a callout for a concrete slab to be constructed adjacent to 
the rear wall of the existing building. The concrete slab addition is called out as a 17' by 
26' concrete slab with 16" by 16" thickened edge. The thickened edge would act as a 
footer for a wall to be constructed. It is not clear on the plans if exterior wall will be 
constructed on this slab. Please verify. 

Slab is intended for placement of a walk-in cooler, by others. 

2 . Sheet $2.1- The plan also includes a callout for a second concrete slab addition adjacent 
to the rear wall of the existing building. The dimensions are for a 12' by 32 '-10" concrete 
slab and footer for a proposed room addition to the building. The n otes on the sheet 
reference a metal stud wall and include an exterior door. Additional information is shown 
on plan sheet AE100 

Comment acknowledged. 

3. Sheet AE'f 00- there are dimensions from the existing property line to the limits of the 
proposed improvements to the rear of the building. The new building extension is shown 
to be 21 '-3" from the rear property line. Per City code, for C1 zoning, the minimum setback 
is 20 feet. The plans show the room addition is 21 '·3 ". Please verify the zoning for the 
property. At a minimum, the zoning information and setback requirements need to be 
shown on the plan set. 

Sheet AE100 - Revised to communicate requested zoning data Zonng appears to be C-2. Refer to 
attached property card for additional confirmation. 

''J2: ·.u."):0 I ~.,E,'I'....~ ~_J.?·=8•'1 3P:-::I~·.S.) ;... ·..:~-3 ;: 

A<I.26C33' 

7 



4. Sheet AE100- there is a call out for a proposed concrete pad for walk-in cooler by others. 
This appears to be a slab for some sort of stand alone, outdoor storage unit. Please 
clarify. Per City code, we understand there is no outdoor storage allowed. In addition, if 
the pad is enclosed, the exterior wall will be 16'· 7" from the rear property line. Depending 
on the zoning, this addition will encroach on the minimum rear setback. 

Sheet AE100 - Design intent is as shown. Refer to Sheet AE101 for additional clarification. 

5. Sheet P0.2- The g rease trap detail calls out "1,250 gallon per minute" grease traps. Please 
clarify the call out on the schematic. Will this site produce 1,250 gallons, per minute of 
flow to the crease traps?! Or, is the schematic indicating there will be three 1,250 gallon 
grease traps in series? If the tanks are to be 1,250 gallons, please revise the detail. 

Refer to consultant response attached. 

6. Sheet P2.0- plumbing plan- this p lan sheet depicts a series of three grease traps for the 
improvements. The discharge line from the grease traps are shown to tie into an existing f. 
inch gravity sewer line. Have calculations been prepared to verify the existing 4-inch 
sewer line has th e capacity for the additional flows from the brewery? In order to complete 
the review, please provide wastewater flow calculations for the new use, the flows through 
the grease traps and the total new flow to the existing g ravity sewer line. Also, if available, 
provide the existing slope on the 4-inch sewer line to verify the capacity of the sewer line. 
The concern is the existing l ine will not have the capacity for the new flows, which may 
cause either a backup inside the building or spillage from the g rease traps. This 
information will most likely be required by the County for their review. 

Refer to consultant response attached. 

It is o ur hope that the above conversation and drawing revisions are found to be satisfactory. Should you 
have any questions, please feel free to contact me at any time. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

DanielL. Edgell, AlA, NCARB 
President 

SANDSARARC COM 1 02 E TA'<PON AVENUE. TARPON SPRINGS. Fl 3J08 9 727 308 1773 



ARCHITECTURAL ENGINEERING INCORPORATED 
36458 US HWY 19 N, 
VOICE (727) 784-1472 

November 22 , 2019. 

PALM HARBOR, 
FAX (727) 784-1474 

Mr. Daniel Edgell, AlA, NCARB 
SANDBAR ARCHITECTURE 
1162 Rolling Oaks Ave 
Tarpon Springs, FL 34689 

RE: Gatlin Hall Brewery, Orlando, FL 
SA Project No. 19-24 
AEI Project No. 19124 

Dear Mr. Edgell: 

C ity of Edgewood Plan Review Comments 

FLORIDA 34684-1 330 
E-Mail: AEIFL@aol.com 

Comment 5: Sheet P0.2- The grease trap detail calls out a 1 ,000 gallon precast 
box. The schematic detail on the same sheet calls out "1 ,250 gallon 
per minute" grease traps. Please clarify the call out on the 
schematic. Will this site produce 1,250 gallons per minute offlow to 
the grease traps? LOr, is the schematic indicating there will be three 
1,250 gallon grease traps in series? If the banks are to be 1,250 
gallons, please revise the detail. 

Response: The conflict has been clarified (the design is three 1 ,250 gallon 
tanks in series). The grease interceptors in the Sanitary Riser 
Diagram are 1,250 gallon tanks . See Drawing P0.2, dated Revision 
1, 11/22/19 . . 

Comment 6: Sheet P2.0- Plumbing Plan: This plan sheet depicts a series of 
three grease traps for the improvements. The discharge line from 
the grease traps are shown to tie to an existing 4-inch gravity sewer 
line. Have any calculations been prepared to verify the existing 4-
inch sewer line has the capacity for the additional flows from the 
brewery? In order to complete the review, please provide 
wastewater flow calculations for the new use, the flows through the 
grease traps and the total new flow to the existing gravity sewer line. 
Also, if available, provide the existing slope on the 4-inch sewer line 
to verify the capacity of the sewer line. The concern is the existing 
line will not have the capacity for the new flows, which may cause 
either a backup inside the building or spillage from the grease traps. 



Mr. Daniel Edgell, A lA, NCARB 
Gatlin Hall Brewery, Orlando, FL 
November 22, 2019. 
Page 2 of 2 

This information will most likely be requ ired by t he County for their 
review. 

Response: A. The new 4" sanitary drain (from this tenant space) and the new 
4" discharge from the three grease interceptors (from this tenant 
space) connect together and are routed to an existing 4 inch 
sanitary sewer running from North-to-South on the East s ide of 
the bu ilding. Th is existing 4" sanitary sewer connects to another 
8" sanitary sewer pipe that then runs frorn West to East. The 4" 
sanitary riser pipe supports the 92 drainage fixture units (DFU) 
for the tenant space (as shown on the sanitary r iser diagram on 
Drawing P0.2). 

B. The sanitary drain flow and grease waste drain flow are shown 
on the riser diagram on Drawing P0.2 (42 DFU from the tenants' 
sanitary drain plus 50 DFU from the grease interceptors). The 
grease interceptor calculation (three 1,250 gallon tanks) is shown 
on Drawing P0. 1, Specification Note P9, Note A) . The existing 
slope on the existing 4" sanitary sewer is unknown. The build ing 
drain out of the tenant space is sized according the FBC 
Plumbing 71 0.1. FBC Plumbing Table 710.1 (1) identifies a 4" 
pipe at a 1/8" slope is capable of handling 180 DFU. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. 

ARCHITECTURAL ENGINEERING INCORPORATED 

i ~jj /)/£'~.__ 
'N. Ronald Mcilveen , P .E. 
Project Manager 

WRM/kld 

Attachment (1) 



Property Record- 12-23-29-
7312-00-179 

Property S tun mary as of 11/30/2019 

P roperty Name 

Fort Gatl in Shopping Center 

Names 

Martni Holden LLC 

Mu nicipalit)' 

EDG - Edgewood 

Property Use 

II 05 - Retai l Mul ti-Tenant 

M ailing Address 

5555 S Kirkman Rd Ste 20 l 
Orlando, FL 32819-7933 

P hysical Address 

75 Gatl in Ave 
Orlando, FL 32806 

____.~~:· ~ 
15 GATLIN AVE. ORI..At.OO, fL l2S06 91912019 1:36PM 

Orange County Property Appraiser • 
http :l/w\vw.ocpaf1.org 

QR Code For Mobile Phone 

9 



292312731200179 06/16/2006 

292312731200179 06/16/2006 292312731200'179 06/16/2006 

292312731200179 06/16/2006 

292312731200179 06/16/2006 

10 



~~ 
I_ -

_J 
I · 
( 

! 
' 

I j 

Property Features 

Property Description 

=, 
i 

l I 

)' - -l-r.t" Bel!!',h le 

RANDOLPHS PLAT C/58 THE N l/2 OF LOT 17 (LESS E 175 THEREOF) & THAT PART OF THE Nl/2 OF 
LOTS 18 & 19 LYING E OF DIXIE HWY A!K/A SR #527 & BEG AT THE INTERSECTION OF THEN 
LI E OF SEC 13-23-29 & ELY R/W OF SR #527 SAID POINT 8 ElNG S89-50E 394.15 FT FROM THE W 
COR OF 13- 23- 29 RUN TH S89-50E 374.96 FT TH N00-57E 225FT TH N89-50W 400FT TO ELY RIW OF 
SR #527 AS IT EXISTED PRIOR TO THE ORDER OF TAKING IN MIN BOOK 21/283 THRUN SELY TO 
POB (LESS R\W OF SR #527 & LESS COMM SW COR 12-23-29 RUN S89-50E 4 12. 16 FT TH N00-57E 225 
FT TO PT ONE RI\V OF SR #527 FOR POB TH E 200 FT S 155 FT \V TO E RJ\V LI E OF SR #527 TH 
NLY TO POB) 

Land 

Land Use Code Zoning Land Units Unit Land Class Unit Class 
Price Value Price Value 

II 05 - Retai l Multi- C-2 235877.4 SQUARE working .. . \York ing .. . working ... working ... 
Tenant FEET 

Buildings 

Model Code 04 - Commercial Subarea Description Sqft Value 

Type Code 1105- Retail Multi-Tenant BAS - Base Area 33 139 working .. . 

Building Value working ... CAN - Canopy 630 working ... 

Estimated New Cost working ... FOP- F/Opn Prch 1346 working ... 

Actual Year Built 1960 SFB - Sem F Base 540 working ... 

Beds 0 UST - UnfStorag 253 working ... 

Baths 0.0 
Floors 
G ross Area 35908 sqft 
Living Area 33679 sqft 
Exterior Wall Cb.Stucco 
Interior Wall Plastered 

Model Code 04 - Commercial Subarea Description Sqft Value 

11 



December 2 , 2019 

Ms. Sandy Riffle 
Deputy C ity Clerk 
City of Edgewood 
405 Bagshaw W ay 
Edgewood, FL 32809-3406 

RE: 4721 S Orange Avenue - Gatlin Hall plans review 
CPH project number E7601 

Dear Ms. Riffle; 

We are in receipt of the revised plans and response letter for the above l isted project, Revised 
November 11 , 2019 and December 2, 2019. dated October 25, 2019. We reviewed the plans 
and letter to verify all our comments have been addressed. 

Based on the plans and response letter received, we do not have any objections to the City 
approving this set of plans. Please be reminded, approval of this application by the City of 
Edgewood does not grant authority to alter other portions of this property, nor does it waive any 
p ermits that may be required by Federal , State, or County agencies which may have jurisdiction. 

Sincerely , 
CPH, Inc. 

A llen C. Lane, Jr., P.E. 
Project Engineer 

CC: David Mahler, P.E., f ile 

J :\E7601\Civii\Documents\City Plans-Application Review\4721 S Orange Ave - Microbrewery\letters\4721 S Orange 
A ve - Gatlin Hall plans approval 12-2-19.docx 

• •• L 

12 



CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS FOR: \,it: u1 o~lli': 
CJI '( UF 1~1 )(-JI.:'·,~_II \()I 

GATLIN HALL BREWING 
4721 SOUTH ORANGE AVE 
ORLANDO, FL 32806 

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION TEAM 

CLIENT 
GATLIN HALL BREWING 
4721 SOUTH ORANGE AVE 
ORLANDO, FL 32806 

PROPERTY OWNER 
MARTNI HOLDEN, LLC 
5555 S KIRKMAN RO 
SUITE 201 
ORLANDO, FL 32819-7933 

ARCHITECT 
SANDBAR ARCHITECTURE 
102 EAST TARPON AVENUE 
TARPON SPRINGS. FL 34689 
727.308.1773 
WWIN.sandbararc.com 

PROFESSIONAL STATEMENT j 
"------· 

CONTRACTOR 
AMH CONSTRUCTION, INC 
30 SOUTH IVEY LANE 
ORLANDO, FL 32811 
407.930.5806 
www.amh1nc.co 

1,., 

I!"" 

DRAWING INDEX 

"" "'" '""'"' 

""'""·'''''""'·'""'''"'""'' '"''"''""'""""''''" 

WA"' ''"'"' 
0 '""" ""' O<"<XO~ '""'""'"" """' 

,,, . .,,,,,."'" "'""·' 
'"""'"'"'"'"'"'''"" 

@ 
SANDBAR 
"fl < fl I r f ( r II II l f'A 

'" ,,.., '''"''" ·~""" 
'"''""" '~""''' "n"'"' ""'" 

"'"""""" CUM 

,(%~:_:;~~~~~;\ 
~,~~A"~~;;,;;, ''j)} 
'.·~~;;,~;,~:~~;:~;{d),' 

GATLIN HALL 
BREWING 

'"''Ol1:"0I<AN1,1 AV1 
(l'<IANIJO II ''""' 

COVER SHEET 

CO''""'UCCI% 

I.. . .. ' •. ., ... , 
I 

GI001 



@ :2 
" " "' < 
"' 

' 

!H 
m 
·~· ~ ' 'il ' ' '<\ i ! 

m ' ' ~ ' 
~ I ' :~~ ~ •' ; ., l;l ' (ii 

z_ 

\ 

< 
[ 

~ 
' ' ~ 
8 
" 
"' Q 
"• ~):' 
wo 
'"-

: ~ < • • 

I_ 1 

!l!i~ 

' ' 

; 
-' 

\ ___ ~ __ _/ 

·~--------

l 

~-=----------
; .l 

~ 

N 
(J) 



''I'. ~ ~ •. 

I ~"' ~ill . ,..,.,, """ 
~~l~/ f?';:72.':'~:;;· 

"~ 
P-'''"""".00hN> ""'-'' ,..,_,..., '"'-'- "''"' "'" 
"""''"'0'.0>"J''><FKo"""1 

l ·:j ! ... ·· ~yf'~l::O'i.::"· 
~:~;7T I: ~:~r···"':'"'".~}'~~~:;::~;·~ 
l--~ 111,,1>-:~~~·-""'=~''=""" 

/ ' ~~~l~f~t~5,;J~~: 
CD"ECTION 

1 l>oCA" "'', '-~ 

~ '"~ 

' j ' ' A . j·~· ·. ·.:.: . 
, t.. ._~., ..... ~- I 
•'I]J;I·•m '·' II"'"""' 1 r 8 ---~~~~_:"·~~ .. ,.;jCa:'[_ ;_j 

~ I; 

~~~I ? . 

. /.. I \~11.1·_1 j;'' ·tJ .·. . ., 
:IJ' . j "'"~· I' j -- ...... s 'I' ; ? ONU UI'LIGE 10""101 II,~ I 

,I 1 ,:·~~~ ?' t::.~~~·- ! /· A1~P'"'" ~::~_r-+ 

- ----·--·-- ---- . ..1 
(RE:;t.~~~'?l~~J!;~~~LNf,::~-c><-~RO~L AO ""-""'""-<> >Ok 

N[. , .. NC" '""A"O'<> DO NOT C>OH"<>f ,_,,,..,-, '""ll"'<'<'",.-•0 

co"'"""''""• 
l "MD P•CA'A" "' "'"-"'""' 

,_p <O~O'AO"~ ""'"~'" '"""·"'"AMINI"'"'"""' 
"ONIW ,._,OC'<l" Ot.>l" 

''>"ICC 1"'-<G" ,_CAYA'IO< IN'"" NO) G~G<WI"" 0' '-""" C'l 
OHACC ~C O"'F'AC1l0 CO A MIN ...... <" ""' NOD•FILD H<OCTO" 

IN,.Cl "'"'"""'""'"'"DOD .IO<C '""NIG ~~~" <N "" "'-•<> """ 
'="' '"" c""co'"" "'~ oc.~ ""'"'"'"' ""'"'c" '""'"'' 

::::;·~·;:;,. ~ \ ..• , ~· j I "" - ·-··· 
""'""'""""' , 1' :;;~:· .. , i -'r ........... ,. ~"' 
,. PH~m I 'UIT JI!-~'1{<-/)''<·/~J• 

~= ::u ---- ~-JI(~:':j·:~~~;~~~ ::::~::,::,~:-
YPICAL TRENC @c., ..... ,, 

... _CA>1 C"'"C ""'" 
•'"'"'" n..-. """'"" 

&"''~I)T 

"'"~ IO "'-"' om<l AND 010_, 
<Cit.~"'"-""'""'~ 1•0" IO~ 

""'""~''' "'""''""'·"""'' 

''""'" ""'""'""'"'""' AP'"C>NI 100:""""'P' C. 

""'-"'""' "'-"-~ '""-'"'""""'"' 
'''""' ....... ""'OA!o'D ~"'"'" 
"""' >o~ wcAI•<><O ""-"'-''~'"" 

""""'"""'- '""'--~""' 

0':a~vc:fc,TE BEAM REINFORCI>.J~_pETAIL 10r:E.~.D__;?~R:UJI":JOW OPEN1f<6- ELEvATION 

/1.---,-

II,) .. , 
-·1 ~ 

' 
// 

· .. '-----·~,.I 

'"'"1'""'"""'""""'"""""y ,., ~'"" "'~'''"'" 

I f~~: :::-r:~~~",~-~ ........ ., ............. I 

~ROuT ALL CPLI.O OOL•D 

"''"'""-'-"'"""-' 
~"'"'"''"""'''-..,,.., 

~)MOW"'" Ll"v AO 
"'~'V !DO<NLWU"'-N""" 
'<tC!,..OI""CIC"U• 
"O"I[<;I<IAt JD"i ~1.1"' 

N.W ...... GA"C"""'1<F'f U-LINIF< 
NVTO, 
"'-''" 10 ~t"-'< ""D Go;C'<I" 
,INI'I OC•"Dih.> >0~-'<>0111"'"'"-

.~;,·,..,:-::~ ·::::,~ 0 

TYP PRECAST LINTEL DETAIL AT 

1 @7,.~~;T11~~-~ '"' 

-/1----~-

i r 

i 9 I! 
·.Jd. 
.I . 

--.· 
:I" "i' 
1·1· 
I' 1r, 

,.,,,.,,_,--,.-_ .. ,.., ... """'~ 
"" .. , ..... ·~-·~ .... 
I"'" I Rl'FC~'O"'-"<>PC«~O.:: 
''-"'"loLNI'C•~IAM 

U~<>.H All GELLO OC'.ID 

""" ""'"'-"'" ~OAM 
"'" •.e "'""-''" 1-• w ~~AN 

•>H~..- '""' 0H0 .. 

""'"''"""'w~'"'"' 
~fCO<"""GIGHUwo 

••-""llC'<IALJaiN1 "''" 
", •. c.c "" ..... ~ 10 

Nf~C"'"C"flf VE""Aoo-.-t' 

I<I>C" 10 "LAN""' 
~""'~"' Mt"""""'OUlt 
>o• "'P""""' ·NO-O 

.!';,:~:~·~""0 

0 ;::._· ~~~~~-~.~EAM DETAIL AT EXISTIN6 

7c~ r·.'iF' 1 .•. ... '"""" \ 
,_,,.1"'·"'-•~ \ I 

·~ 
" 
I 

,!, ' ,'II' ·, .. ~~ .J.r I ;/; 1 ;,11! 1~ 1 !,;1-:IJ 
'"j 

~ ~-~ 

~~:,££::~"~c· \ t 

··:"'''"" \~_ j 
·r,,·_

11
-, :.~~~~: • -.

1
,·,::r","

1
_;,.

11 
IIIII ~~. 11,\,r,. ,,,J,IIII/1'111·1 II 

1111/ll,,t\ ~,:.~-tfli~l,--;11,-··1--1 
Ill: .. II , IJI,-)';1""1:1~11 ,.II ,II 

\_,,.," 

AT<xiOT .... >CAJ>·o><-~""~C 

.t 

0 ;;.,;;.lc,~~- ~:w TO EXIBT SLAB CONNECTIONS 

t-'>1 CC«C"' 1L llt~<.<>-1 

'-""'"""c"'" •o">c~-vt.~'" 
LC<VAII'-'"A>"'-~'U 

""M(>v< M<D ><eC"'""""' -
"''""' M40GN~o AbO.-E NE~ 
""-''"" 10 IlL oti>M AOI<L~V 
'000'"' N10f>"""'"''"""""'' 
t"""D Ga<Ol"'-'Cll"" "PM,W 
""'" X>INt"'-1"' AI "''OC _, 

l'li"'~" 
,.,.,C.M1Co-CI1Nlt-t
.o •• ~·N ~"" OAO" I,ND 

"""" 10"'-" """ ""D••"' 
'"'"" lo"'"'""'D '-0"'0" 
C<>K"'-1L "l-AM LDCAII'-"' 

''""'"1 OG\.ID<>>Celi.,MINI 
•'L>JAC,NI 10 LOGo< OIDt (;> 

""''""'"• "'""""'"'-"'0~ 
"'""' M-1.,._ '"'"" NPIG.OW 
"""~ IOI""'D"L<XOA1NOI<' 
""""'~'""''0DI11CI<A.. W'Lt ,...,..,. 

·~""'~'"\ -·-""""'"'" 11~Y~ORE"~TO lr •texlbl..:.CC<-JOl"""liC>< 

~k~~:~ .. . \. r ~~.~~.'.~~iirt;. ··· · i_;;Li~-\ }~~~c·;~~=T , 
·~·· ~-IL~, · ic'THJ - . ·-.. 

1

. 
! :·: :·::: ! 

-~~=-17-i~--~r-_: -~-
.r_ . , : .,[! r:t. :~, ~,, 

__j_l" l+r++l""""'""" I ' I I I I I •0• '"M"" 

: " ' ' " I I -·-·'-r·-'-+-+ --t-> H-,-----l 

" :.:. . ' : 'i+::: .. t2::1., ... ,~ 

~~:::;,·;:""'' 

.,.,,._,-"0"''""1" 
D""-L>Oo'l~~"'' 

"'" CO<C><EOC ---
COl•"" .,.,,.,_ o<'!1 
OO-=<•O~CLA._n 

"'"" ~~~'"" 4•u 

•I 
.~.I 
.',' 

''! ,.,. 

-''"""""~~""' 
·IO'U~ 1'6AL, WHo 

... , ''"'-~loC.C DOUOt 
"''"""'DI<'ONIO•><>" 
• '-"""- ~ul"'"''' 

rj ijo • ~-1 

·~ 

®TYPICAL MASONRY IN-FILL DETAIL 
"""'' "'"•1'.0 

® ::'-,.C.TI::~ • ~~~LI) COLUMN/EXIST INC. FT'f! 

:;:;z::§' .. \ ! ••• --~· I 

""'''""""'' '- I / •. , ·.1 
\\ I I ' 

1111 1 i.7:''\r ,•( ~ "~!\< 
IIIII II 't\ ~ •J,":1~tll II •! 'I" ....-~pJ<i=; II -·~~,11,-' .. "'"" ... ,. .. 

~~.;""-••• 

'""'·~·. 
'"" '"•"•"' 

( ~~.~ ,', '"' 

I 
DEM0liTiC:>JtC~STRUt:TI~ SEOOONCE AT NEill 
OPENII.l:;S (CONCF<E'TE LENTELIIN EXI~Til'¥> 

;;,~~~.!1 ~!7~.~. a.., 0 I 
""' 1) "'~~y ,.,,.,,.-, W<Pil"'"'.WD '<01 .. 

"'"--""L~I"-"'-'"'-'"'-' ..,., ~'"-"'~"""'" 
1 .,,a., •x'0"'<> 'LCO-oe< '"-"""" AO "'"""'"'' 

'"""''""" 10 "'- ''"'O"l~ ~· """'""'" >co••vA 

, '"""" "'""""''""' ""'"'0""'"'"'"'''''"""""' ~D-GA"~ """ Q""-"1 "''"""' """'"'"' c"co -'> 
0~1 o;l>ll[> "'-''-" 11> l,;oj ION""'-"'"-"'" I~OI<HAII<N 

< ~~,i;.:,', ~~;,';''}"'~~1,"";.~~~':,.: ,'~,_.";;_,',;_":" I 

I, ~., .. , L ""'CAO! '-1 IN1CL OVEI< ..,. ""''"'""" "'". 
•HINI"'">~>·~,_,-,,_,,_,FNC,I'NO "->u MoO(""' 

.,'"""- L~'I-L•"' "'"-''"lV 

I .... ,, ··~ """""""'"' 

i~~~~~~;y;c:~.TIGN i' 

~;.~~J:JT~·::~-.~~~.-. \'" 

"T;" ,\~" · I il'"'l•;:.:: 
..• :.: )-,;1 II 1 .,. 

...... _ '" I 
.>O"OlC.II(•~~""-' 

@::~,TI::N.~~EUJ B=AMIEXIST WALLJ 

@ 
SANDBAR 

'~' llllll Tlllf J',; 

~~~;~s. 

GATLIN HALL 

EJREWING 

41}1 'OIJTII ORANC'.r AVJ 
01<LANJlOFL3J80o 

,. I 

I 

CON,,li<LJCf10" 

"'"'"'""''• 

84.2 



7 ," @] 
~ ' 

;.;, 

n 
i ;, 

:::: 
i~ :· @] 
~ _:~ 

:~ '' 
;, ~ 
~ ~ 

i" :; 
~ ,•: 

,., 

@_I 

1·:0'; 

:i: 

,,.-100" "'."~ 

1

• ,, .,." 

(.,:.,) 

1[
,- J 
L ll · cJ 

<c• (,; 

I'" I ·:,:· " " II 
I• 

l-'1 

I~ I 

(,..,,, 

'F'' I 

i - ' 0><.') 

/ ,-\ :· 

''r.-~ 

'"~'" 

E3· I 

("~') 

l::r::)-<~:.1 
I , •/)':) 

""'' 

·L=J' 

""'"'''""" 

' ,,, 

II ' ,, ,, 
'I• 

"""""''" 

'Y.···" ... ·* c:~?.·,. ,,,,, .... ·:.:o::o::·:c·:, r--J 'I"''""'"""'' . ---. -·--'il = ··\c:!PJ -'=(.:.:~-------'.!l··r -; IJ 
.. : : ...._ • __ • ___ •r ··I ·I. ·, I • , - •.. l"l 
' I ',. I'~" "I ' . ' . 

' :I ! I I·\ /.'.., ..--"'4· I • 1•1 'i 1" 

1
, ·r·· 

(:.)~ I·'[;_ ..• -:~ i .,,:.,, 

l: I· 'it 1 II 
' ! I _- ·\I. I•' /1 I : .. <· 

.I , <:_o'1· :,\-_ "' I , r•· I ,_, )..,_,. , '--- --- -"·~ \ · 

'.!,., ·l, ''·,,, ·C:;:"'"""TJII[•i 
I "'""""" I ·~ ' I I 

I',:> ' . ]·"' ' II ·,·', I ' ' 

'., cj , ' 
·.~>0,~ ··::::", .: 11

1
" 

•'< 'I :ll ""'·'""': 
: : ~: '" """ "" '~::_~j 

' li lll!H'I 
'\ .. , ':, I!: . 'I' 

1•·1 

0 , .. 11'11·~,11 
' D ',HI 

·11•1 "" 

' 
1 
' '-. t.. 

"' 

,. 
(., '~,;:, I 

' 

I 
<·; 1-.1 

I q 
I·,.,.,., 
I 

I' 

:·1 :n 

,1, 

'"' 

~:} 
' 

j 

I" 

~oJ: 
' ' 
' I 

' I 

I ,, 

" 

II -~.~ I !:ll 
2'.., il~ 
v~. 

' ' ' 
Q_t\ 

I

I· I" i \ 11 

1':1· 0·1. , II+J :.:. · II' i 

•> I 
I 

'.\ ,r 1< •> 

) 

I -----------

GENERAl FLOOR PLAN NOTES !-. =· ;,, .. ~ . '"' ,,.,;:.:;~, -~---

"'" '''"'"''' '"'''"'' "''"''""'""' 

SIGNAGE 

"'"~'""'''''"' '''"'·' 

I: KEY~-~~: .. ~.~~:.~.~ ... " ""'' ... 

::. :, ~~~][:"''""'"""~'t' I 1.1 ,,,, 1 1, I 1 I wo•.(•·•"'"~"""' 1
1 '"' , . ·,:.,J,.r 1--· ---+----- ----~, ,,.)' ' 

:.:~~-~'-, i, ~: .. J, '"": Lc'! ~~~Lk · :
1 1

: 1 1 --~-- \"" : i 1 '~' 1 ' _[,.iJ · " · ' . · ' · 'f1 : .lc=cc .. -cc~·-c-cc"'·:='~,_,,.,;'-,~_cc cc:cccc;,J: 
[

·.1 , ~----·-------- .... -- ~ -·==· · ······ .. ... D . ~ I~ ].[ jJ 1 ·ccc.=c=c--.. -"--~-----~,-- C .... ------------ II r - I ----- • c~ fD 

@ 
SANDBAR 
All( Hill( llJ< 

,g;;;l;{/'/;;;;~--
/1"' ,,. ' '""- ·~·-i\( :,:.; .. :>-::,: 

·->-'•·,··"-0'/ ?.:?r!f!l-

GATLIN HALl. 
BREWING 

""''OLJ<I<ORANC.I AVI 
OI<1ANDO, I l """" 

FLOOR PLAN 

L>OCUMI ~1~ 

AE101 



@) 
~< 

<= 
:::c:: 
0, 
z~ ~~ <c 
V)~ 

' ' I ' ' I ~ ! ~ ' ' ~ l ~ ' ' i 
, 

~ 

i 
~ ~ ~~ ; ' ~ § ' ' • ' ~ ~ ~ ' ' j ' ~ ~ u ~ I ~ ~ 

~ ' ' ~ ~ ' ' ' ; ' ' ~ ' ' j 8 ~~ ' ' ~ ~ ~ I t ~ ~ ' I ' ' ' ! 
' '§ 

i ~ 

!! 
< ' ~ ' ~ ' ' ' g 

~ ' I ' ~ ' ~ ' j ' ! ' ' ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

' ' ' 
,, 

~ ~ ~ ~ ! ~ ' ~ ~~ ~ ' ~ ~ ~ i ' ' ' ~ ~ ' ' ~ ~ ' ~ ' ~ ~~ i ' ' § ~ ! ~ ~ ' i ~ ' ~ 

~~ 
~ ' ~ I ' ' ' I < 

~ ~ I ~ ' I ~ ~ i ~ ; ' ' § 

~ ' :± ' ' ' ~ ~ ~ ' ! ~ I ~ ' i ' ' 
~ 

I ' ~ ' ! ' ' g ' ' ~ ' ~ I ~ ~ ' ' ' ' -~ ~ ~ ~ ' ~ ~ i § ' ' ' ! ' ' ~ ' ' ~ ! ; ; 
' 

' ~ ! ~ 
' l I ~ ~ 

~ ' 
j 

l ' ~ 
~ ' l i ' ~ 

~ ' ' I ' ' ~ ~ 
§ ~ ' ~ i @ ~ ' ~ ' ~ ' ~ ; ' ! ~ i '! ~ ~ ' ~ ~ ' ' ~ i 0 2 g ' ~ ' ~ ~ ; ' 1 ' ~ ; ~ ' ! § ' ' ' ' ~ ' ' ~ 
' ~ ' ' ' ~ ' ' ' 
8 8 8 ® 0 C§:: "" 0 G e ® ~ ~ cg; 

~ ~ ~ ¢ 

5 i 
;;,--

i ' ' j ~ ' ' 2 ~ ' ' ~ 
~ ' ~ ' ~ ' ~ ~ 
' ' ' < g ~ ' 

, 
' ~ ' ' j i e ~ ~ ' 1l ' ' ' ' g ~ ' ' ~ [ ~ 

~ ~ ' ' ~ ' ' ' ~ ! ' I ~ i ~ ~ ' < ~ ~ ! ~ ~ ~ ' ~ ' ' ~ ~ ' ' f ~ ~ ~ ~ i ' ' ' ~ ~ ~ i i ~ ~ ' ~ ~ ~ ~ ' ~ ~ 

' ~ ' ' ~ ' 2 I ~ I ~ ' 
< 

~ ~ ~ ~ ' ' ' ' ' ' ' ~ ~ § ~ ' ~ l 
' 

' ' I ' ' ~ 

' i ' I ' ' ~ ~ ' ' ~ ~ j ' 

i ~ I ' ' ~ ' ~ ~ " ~ ; 
~~ ;; 

~ ' t~ ::2 ~ ' H ~ - ~~ 

~ ~ i -
E 

~ -

~~ t -

' ~ ' ' ~ ' ~ ~ B ' ~ ~ '' ~ ~ z 2 ~ 2 ~ ~ ' ~ 0 "' ~ C': ~ 
~ 0 0 0 

~ t 
' ~ ' ' § ' ' ~ 

~ ~ ~ 
' ' ' ~ ~ ' ' ' ~ ' 

~ ' ' ' ' ~ ! ; ~ 
' ' ' ' 

' ! ~ ' i ~ i ~ 
~ ' ' ~ ~ ~ ' ' ' ' ~ ~ 
' ' ~ ' ! ~ ' ' ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ 

' ~ i ' ~ ' ! ' ' ~ ' ~ ~ § ' I ~ I ' @ 

~ I ' ~ ~ 
! g 

~ ~ ~ 

H ' ' ' ~ 
~ ~ ~ ' ~ 

~ @: ~ 
0 0 

' ' 
' ~ 
' ' ' 
' ' ' 1 

' ~ 
~ 

li ~ ' 
' ~! 

~~ i ~~ 

' I ' ~ ' ~ ~ 

H 

' i! 
•;s ., 

' ~ 
~ ' 
~i 

i Jj rll , 
~ ~ H 

:§) i: 

i,'l '< 
':~ ~-~·~, g 

'< , I ~- I 

0 
a_ 

___ of ____ _ 



I@] 

l@l] 

I@JI .. 

'!I ! ' 7r ~~·,-_:-'-·,· .. ·.· .... ·.·-':"'"·~~ 
.'11'1' I .... I ' I I ·.'' ! . : / i· 

J: [I' , l'-".- .fL/J[_:j-----e-C--~-----y- L.·.----~· .... -~------"! ______ LI -~,-------------------·---
!1 1 ,: 1 jl II[J· u, , r' "jl"- 1 -~ I t.:";;· 
I J .. '. < 'I I. \._1 -- D :~ : \ / .,._........,_,....,.(.;. 
'"-.,' I IJ I :. i k 
.~I ' I' 'LJ n,".f', II I' l II ''" ~~ 

__ ,i 
' ' ! 

/ .JL~L ' ,I II 1. . I ',' < ~ ,, 

'iTI'./,'1' II 'IJ.' I I : ;r~ ~.-.. I~, ' 
I
' < ,_, ·~ I' ' : I'' < ,,.,, ' I 

., [] ", !,. \ \. 1u1 -n+- .:..._ "" ,; 

1,1 . II v>o<C, r ~-~r· [ .1 :. · . ' ,< , 

~~ J ~ ::;'"'6 1: .. !1 ILJ ~~ :: ~w~~k 1 11 /-~~~ / I .. 

•I I" )( v I \--,[1 I . I I / I I 

'-!,, " ' " . I ' ' I, " < ·-1-"- ''""""" '"' "'" : ) 
"1 ·- --· fJI. 1 '-~1 / I ~ ,;;;w;;:ocon,.·-1 ! ,. " 

'I (?X;,", I ,, 'I' ' I < 'fi' I! " >l "~"'"""""""' I ' < / / ' 0 0 ,' ~: :' ·~1 ( :·: l'·'-i 1 \. ~ \ 1 ~", · ':;,..-,, .. ..._, 
I ~-!"\· • II II I .J \ D • ' I ,.,~IW"""" 
' '"'''J 0.-J U< ;[ ' OJ 'Ill, ( .. HI'·. I I, I ' ,---'---, ' ~·- : ~'~\ j 8 ~" : ;) I 

r1r I •. / ,:/ s \:. ~u ... : o : 
.j. I II H :1 ~ 1-" ~ I ' 

/ .~ "'- r""l r--1 II I '1' f \.,o,H • ., 1 ~ ,, 1 1 
~ ., I ' ,• ', D " ,Vi '"'"' ; N I I 

/' / \) ') • • : ' " I -D--- "~ ' I I 

·.' (' ' I f) I, .II ! .. , ' .'" 1.' .. r'fT 1"·-------------- ··--" ,, , 0 , ' J [] <?. <> ,: I I I [i . ' / I ,111 ~1 • B I ::.v ( ' : : 

I

I l II \,;'0.j/ [ __ JU'c.i I ''·I)'.'' i ~~l'.ljj''l B I '<,';)'I" '---,---" 
I 

- [ ., -ill' I I. I IIJ 8 (I ,'@ '->"""'""" 
' II II I'',,< : 11111 "'·I' 8 ,, \ .,---·---; 
·! - 1· ( ·..)<~ , :-' '::, [1 > .... : i ! I. I -" H ~ ·,' 1 : ~.FR],J ·~ .<.·. 1: L .n 11 111 IT 'i .11

11

•.. 1. s ,: ~;.~:~~ ... : o : 
: ·." (,Yy •. '.''I ).·' 1·. A' ;.1. \ B t; ' ''' « : : I . ,, J ·'- ' ' I I I' BH ' i' ' 0 ' I I I ',, .. . I " : : : 

: - • ' I I I 

! I ll (·-:/'\ r"'1~ :', · , : L ___ T ___ j 

' 'I II ::, '> ~ "I' :, . :1 : ')'"""'" : 11 0.~( ,) I I' I '. [ ~,I .I ·... ~ : r;---'---~ 
j 'o..V J L .. I ' -' .-\ >' I I 0 ' I 

I:"-, '" IL:_' . - .-.,JJ ) : : I . 
"· 1"0''\ ':'lnfl ________________ ,,"·---"------------------,"·---jlrr-'J .:l ' : 1 

0 5< ): :· ' . I· :' . 'i : 0 : I I 
'v &?.,., u[_). I r· , .. : / , r;c~· ~[,;. I •. . 8. ~---,---' N 
<"'v-·" < l : I I . I' ' I • < ' ' < ' ' \ ' ' ' ' I~ 1;-~<1 

' ' 

i>'l 
I"' 
,]' 

l 

/ 'I : · 1 . w~1 •· .. ~ ')'"" " 1) KEYPLAN 
/ ,, I l Hjl I " ; I( 

·· ' - , 'I 1 - 1 11 1 1 , - ~- :lr~ 1 : : • "" • 

1 

j j i: il ~ n. ! .. ~'"·"I,~ 'i"' '.·~ .. ' ·~~-----.-c, :--------------: ~~~~-c ______ ----"-f. .I I 
l li ] I.. II I I ' I '" I "': ' . ( l ' :l '"' " 
- r:. l [ ~ J 1 : · : J IL-:'--·- !! ; --l --: I . s N PLUMBING- uNDERGRouND 

: I l , .r, 1 ______ , ' ' '---~~\vr : · .. (I) FLooR PLAN 

_..; .. , .·.~ /.'.". '.". V. ~ .~."J<.Y.. -.,_v;x,, .". '-0~/.V .. '• .·. ?:'-"v.'~.: • ~.,; N .X.. v.v:··.• ,x;:) ". ,: ~ ~< << • :v~ ~X,~ ,X, ··.• .v )'.' .?.Y/ .Y. • ;•. •. ·.~J:, .. x,v:x, v,xL .•• ',~:~. :; .: .~:..'.' N .'.'.'I I 
! 'I I. I .1 ~ 

i«l " ((·V)'.',XJ'.•."."".''.Y.'' 
,., 

@ 
SANIJBAI~ 
h" '"" ' . l: Ill I' A 

110 
01111111111 I<AI 
L\o,JNII·I<lN< 
1"1>111'1)]""'1• 

'"''·"'•'""''"" ""M"'""'"'" '"•"' "'''"'" , . .,, ... ~ 
·"""""'""'"""'• ""' 
"""·'·"~'·"'" .,., "'" 

~"'". '"'" [)tfAWNI!Y I)WM 

1<1 VII""'""' WH'" 

GATLIN HALL 
BREWING 

4/',/"l<Jr!iCmANiol AV! 
CJHIANilO fl 3>m 

PI UMIIING 

UNDERGROUND fLOOR 
PlhN 

CnN,,II<U( liON 

'""~"'" N "' 

,,,. I 

P2.0 

I 
I 



Edgewood Police Department 
December City Council Report 

2019 

November December 
Residential Burglaries 1 0 
Commercial Burglaries 0 1 

Auto Burglaries 5 0 
Theft 1 5 

Assault/Battery 3 1 
--

Sexual Battery 0 0 
Homicides 0 0 
Robbery 0 0 

Traffic Accident 11 16 
Traffic Citations 119 142 

Red Light Citations 988 597 
Traffic Warnings 332 385 
Felony Arrests 3 1 

Misdemeanor Arrests 2 0 

Warrant Arrests 2 0 
Traffic Arrests 1 3 

DUI Arrests 0 0 

Department Highlights: 

• Sergeant David Ireland and Analyst Stacey Salemi put up all the holiday lights in the 

Police Department, City Hall and Bagshaw Park areas for the holidays. Mayor Dowless 

also assisted in lighting and decorating Bagshaw Park. 

• On November gth members of both the Edgewood Police Department and Edgewood 

City Hall participated in cooking and serving dinner at the Ronald McDonald House of 

Central Florida. 

• On November 20th, the Edgewood Police Department had the pleasure of celebrating 

Reserve Officer Scott Zane's 20th year anniversary. 

• The Central Florida Police Chief's Association held its monthly meeting at the Edgewood 

Police Department on November 22nd. 

• On December 6th the administrative staff attended a breakfast hosted by the Central 

Florida Criminal Justice Association to thank them for their hard work and dedication 

throughout the year. 

• Officer Amy Schlopy wrote an arrest warrant for a suspect who was seen driving while 

her licenses was knowingly suspended as a habitual offender. 

• Sergeant Ireland participated in a press conference hosted by the Orange County 

Sheriff's Office in which we received 12 Individual First Aid Kits. 

• On November 20th Chief Freeburg attended the Safe Holiday Kick-Off Event at the Mall of 

Millenia along with other Central Florida leaders and Chiefs. 

Reporting Dates: November 8th to December 7th 2019 


